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& 940,000 /-YEF THI, EARN &Td AXITATS HieodT FATFRTHT0R AT FEANT T F. Y, 00,000/~ F&TH
T, Afedr s=faEd fqeg a1 Afaus IAEedl IR T TACATIATS] AT HTART T #T ATl TuTddTs
¥ q3,00,000/- YIF W&, AT Mg FAAINTT RISredd, AhIR T = AHEIF @RIT TRUT Toddls
FHI T, 9,28,95% /- T T, 955,955 /- SRTARH! [oRTHT ST fhatea ©uTs Y JaT TR, afa Afwey dvarore
AT &, 9,34,2%0/ - YSTH TWHI, ghal (ead HT AR T Foeld[dls aahls, TN Gl T AAART
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AT ATEF Sebel TXA AT AT ATAIAE &TTHT ATHINA S ITREIAE A g AETIATEs FaTH T B T ATHT
EX
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3R, R0 T AT Bl T AT FaTAH (FIh & AUH S | TN FHART Goraebael dhare A1 faws
foramerept areT fAfT s 3, R09Y aTE AT T IAE TAW FATAF [FAH ETATH G |

IR FHART FARTRT THATE Aehfeqer FaTedAT AT R0 9@z Afersprérer srsar fafq arg 9y, 09%
are 7 fasa AR & I eIl g | AT ST adR] ahare (A STkl Siadr fafa 9w of,
R09Y 12 o Iqrw fah T 9T FHqF FoTAF AH &7 TTCHN B | AT A qees faRA JIrRr stgwr
ot frer =[erer fufd w1 03, R09Y a1 O Jafead F=Tars Haxh g quer foaar | o s Serere
3w+ FfAe g@rgy arar fAfq 9w 03, 06y dTe AwfeTd AEAH AT B AR F |

SepehT TFRATIF TH. afggehl qhare yfafafaea T =i FAISTaeTay 5t Jeqel I, SiaT Frataqdd! qhdare
AT JATSHABIGR AT, ATHT Feexdaddsdl amare = qfiafasmd a1 F=ras 92q47 J9rad EIa0H B |
FATIRIT STARGAE%h] TRATE (HATTad F=TaAd =7 qors [qarer Sebebl FaTeleh AAITHT AT EAES, |
FaIaE fAesRl FAT A IUvs HRT AT qAAq FAAF g |

T AT TEATAAR! THATE G HAFT %3, U 2fegart qawarg Hadl = 55 qdaq AFfar
T A AT FAATH] & |

A7 EHTd TR F.9.37 qdad g9 ATAtdH] T TedTedbi aes, |

TAT AT I AR GATSF AT A(eqd GeTAREEdTS Bliash dqeTg AT TG Sebebl YR T IATHT IeTeeh]
FITETAET AT Mgl | ATY fAadarT g=mede o 9% TH. 9197, G=ras =7 faw fudqrea qar Jefeqs
AR =<k A | A9 AGGIHT b [GTH FIT FMATT @A GATAE QAT ATFT FTqagdr =a<h T8, |

AGILEATT, FrEad T 37 faawor:

fraees fem AT TS SFare TRI AT (M9 AR AHieT auwr faftaa faaver Nepal Financial
Reporting Standard (NFRS) AR TIR GTRTH! ATHHRI RIS =g, | Ta1 @l Tl AR T
AT A, J0\9R/3093 F ATHATT qAT ATF. J0\93/300% H JTAAT AT ATHT A fearaars NFRS =rid
FHT: Opening Balance Sheet @41 Comparative Financials &0 F0HT Y= T I WUH T TF FHHAT ATTH
R THHEEATS U IS Sehebl (HaeTd FHIH 7 Regulatory Reserve AT STFAT TRUHT 3 |
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209y FFR HATIH ATAATT, J0\9% /O I ATHI-AFIT [&dTE, ATRT-AT AShic [Gard, TEHdrE (qav,
FrAfeId AGHET ¥ TGTIRIeHH Fqaad T8 Fqaael ASTH FTH JEqd TRTH G | A FFIAT 0
R0%3 1 UR=g @ THT 0%, T JUGHT (¥) THINTH ATIeTH Gad Iooid &I FIIEeelTs T THTET THRUH!
£

ATHRT - AT TSRS

Aifde ad 00¥ /9% AT TFH G GATHT & § AT 5O IS Y& @M@ 0 g9 WH T 99 Other
Comprehensive Income FHTH! IUMAT Ta&T ehebl FA AT § A 5% FIE & oG &5 AN WEH G |
FEA ATTATd SLTHITHAT TH qUHI 3 HATHIH 0 Yfqerded g4 AT3H &, 30 HE Y9 ar@ R &R
FEATITHT G | AT bl ST TP & K0 FIIGHT JUH] AN ATHIATE T8 IY THAT & FE L9 o1@ 9%
AR qug fRAl SSTHRITHT ATRTR! T | TAHT ATdRE 5. q HAS 59 q@ Y% eAR ITAINAE IATaaed
FUAT T %, I FIE 3 ATE@ WY R FHA ANAH HITHAT MIATTIR THATR TRTH B | favqq auar fafa=
HIIHT THFATAY ATHI T ¥, ¥ FRIS o% AMG O AR fhdl T ATSHIGH! AT ITA AUH! G |

AMIF qT 09% /Y BT ATNT STAIRT HETAHIAETATS IhT Toilehl ¥ IIATT S STaThT ATT 90,9534
gfeqerd Ag drater faqeer T gEATE TXHET G| TG FAAFT ATAG GAT T ANG ATHITHT AT FHHIL:
T Y0 FE U9 A T BAR ¥ T S T T 50 FRlg YUY @@ 99 R 9 ¥F ¥ {TF ITANT TS, | a9
FYF! FEATAT A9 AP faqeor afeg Sl =TT I50 & © od YR FIAES R @@ YUY 9% 5 9T ¥¥
gAE | Hpel TATIATHIASHE 7 (AATATETa T ATRAT STREAEedrs a9 A% qAT AR ATHTF HATRT
famr e a9 a9 uf FE wwgERy afifeafqewr arase afq drarg fMeeaear faT geemr ey dieartad
gl

geqdlq ATIA:

el qTTHT TEATTHT ATNT STARGAT HETTATAEE, TTEHaT qgT FITd XHRHT Grtvad (qebrae g a9
AATAT, AT AT oo, AT AT aiT€, ATl TWep Teheelwa], T IR HraTerd, g que foemaiegt
fafaes, =1 qaa1 & fafads, MEaT Toar w1 W HT Yfq F=1dF AITH ThHaTE eliadh AR Tha
TGl | Tebeb! ARER lae Teb fafHde T SHawTa, Seheht TH@ FTAET AT, qNS HETHeTw,
HETTa=eeh, ATId HETHawde, et AfThre] aad rul FHERT T GedTEedTs Sehebl YITTHT TTTHT
Prarefrer drmaraer @it aerars famgl | Y ETHT PRATEATIATE GERIcHFEIHT fag STaaHe qarsted
FARSRTAHT (78 T TR0 qTH=ghesald 9fd aTHl eTfdd R = TEe) |

PRZEIEN!
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q0.  HEATAH, TATATTHIT (T, ATARYT IARGAT ¥ [ASTehl ANTRFT ATTIR TAT Fed FH, HFAT TGS
SreheITS 9T &9 9N T

sl
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HBL's History

Established as a joint venture of Habib Bank Limited of Pakistan in 1993, Himalayan Bank Limited (HBL) has
been in the forefront of the Nepal’s banking industry since its inception. Starting banking services from the
Employees Provident Fund Building at Thamel, Kathmandu, HBL currently has countrywide network of 57
branches and 111 ATMs to provide highly reliable modern banking services to its customers across Nepal.

Our Vision

Himalayan Bank Limited holds a vision to become a Leading Bank of the country by providing premium
products and services to its customers, thus ensuring attractive and substantial returns to the stakeholders
of the Bank.

Our Mission

The Bank’s mission is to become preferred provider of quality financial services in the country. There are two
components in the mission of the Bank; Preferred Provider and Quality Financial Services; therefore we at
HBL believe that the mission will be accomplished only by satisfying these two important components with
the Customer at focus. The Bank always strives positioning itself in the hearts and minds of the customers.

Objective

To become the Bank of first choice is the main objective of the Bank.
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Chairman’s Statement

Political and structural transitions are difficult, but necessary resets. We should be proud of our historical political
achievements. We must be persistent and patient as these reforms will take time to materialize and will have to be
achieved in the face of mounting volatility and growing criticisms. The implementation of federalism poses considerable
challenges, but it also offers many transformational opportunities.

Fiscal year 2017/2018 has been a challenging year for the banking industry. The liquidity crunch leading to scarcity
of loanable fund was pervasive across the banking industry and persisted throughout the year. Reduced remittance
inflows, slower-than-expected government spending and increased demand for credit due to economic growth all
helped exacerbate the situation. Even in this difficult environment, | am encouraged that management took the right
tactical steps to position bank to achieve its operational profit in line with budget.

Additionally, the Bank faced unexpected headwinds in remittance receivables, but suitable action has been taken to
ensure recovery of such receivables in the coming fiscal year. The fact that the bank is able to withstand such challenging
trading conditions is testament to the strong franchise we have built over the last twenty-five years through dedicated
service to our customers and the larger economy in which we operate. The board remains committed to strengthening
the governance of the bank and ensuring the delivery of high-quality products and services to all our customers.

Despite the challenges facing our country, our economy is expected to grow at over six percent, inflation has been
contained and we welcomed a record number of tourists. Remittance income is also showing signs of stability and
growth. As always, we remain optimists and believe that the future of our bank is closely aligned with the future of our
country.

| would like to thank the Board, our management team and staff for their dedicated service. It is an extraordinary
privilege and responsibility to serve as your Chairman.

Mr. Manoj Bahadur Shrestha
Chairman
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CEOQO'’s Statement

| am pleased to share that the Bank has completed 25 years of service excellence during the fiscal year
2017-18. The journey remained outstanding in terms of the Bank’s performance and portfolio diversity. During
the review period, overall performance of the Bank remained robust thereby maintaining a healthy financial
position. In spite of some adverse circumstances towards the year-end leading to additional loan loss provisioning
and provision for remittance receivable, the Bank has stood strong in the financial market of the country.

Upon fulfilling the minimum capital requirement within the deadline as instructed by the Regulatory Body, we
have focused in diversifying the business by extending our network to remote parts of the country as well. Our
focus also remained in introducing new schemes for our depositors as well as creditors. Thus, the Bank has
been able to achieve a deposit portfolio of close to Rs. 100 Billion by the year end. Like in the past years, our
focus also remained on promoting Retail & SME lending. Similarly, we have invested a lot in strengthening our
IT Security to mitigate possible mishaps.

We are also proud that we are among the major remittance service providers in the country. The remittance
business is growing day by day with exploration of new avenues of business in the Korean Peninsula, Japan
and other countries. We have also tied up with Ripple and expect to start our services through them very soon.

One of our priorities has always remained technological innovations and shifting of traditional banking habits
to modern day banking by adapting to the changing business world. Thus, being a service oriented Bank, we
focused on giving modern banking services to customers at all times by introducing various facilities on cards,
Internet Banking, Mobile Banking, Bancassurance etc and so on.

With the proper guidance of the Board of Directors, we were able to continue the legacy of solidifying the base
of the Bank. | would like to express my gratitude to the BOD, shareholders, our well-wishers, regulator Nepal
Rastra Bank and other government agencies for their invaluable support. Last but not the least, | would like to
thank the entire HBL Family for their sterling cooperation and dedication towards uplifting the image of the
Bank. Without their help, HBL would not have stood rock-solid over the period.

Mr. Ashoke SJB Rana
Chief Executive Officer
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Report of the Board of Directors
To the Twenty-Sixth Annual General Meeting of Shareholders

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors, we cordially welcome all the shareholders to Twenty-Sixth Annual General Meeting of
Himalayan Bank Limited.

The bank has been continuously serving its valued customer for the last 26 years. | feel proud that the Bank has been able
to establish itself as one of the most secure and reliable banks among the financial institutions of the Country.

| am pleased to inform you that Himalayan Bank has performed comparatively well during FY 2017/18 with few exceptions.
Credit disbursement, deposit solicitation, earnings related to remittance and expansion of services were quite encouraging.
The profitability of the Bank was affected by additional loan loss provisioning required to be made at the end of the year due
to degradation of some loan accounts along with provision made for remittance receivable. However, we are hopeful that the
profitability would be increased in the current fiscal year since the Bank Management is working to recover/regularise those
classified loans and remittance receivable.

Presently, the Bank is providing services to its customers from 57 branches and 111 ATM throughout the country.

The Bank has been continuously progressing with the undoubted faith of customers, direct and indirect support of the
shareholders and creative initiatives taken by the management. Since its inception, the Bank has been working in accordance
to its aim of developing a healthy banking system as well as extending accessibity and quality service to the people.

We would like to present the Statement of Financial Position as on July 16, 2018, the Statements of Profit & Loss and
Comprehensive Income for the fiscal year 2017/18, the Statement of Changes in Equity, Statement of Cash Flows and related
schedules and notes for approval of the meeting.

Review of the Bank’s Operations

During the review period, the Bank's total deposit reached Rs. 99.74 billion, an increase of 7.39 percent compared to previous
year. Similarly, the loans and advances reached to Rs. 86.85 billion during the review period, an increment of 11.86 percent
compared to previous year.

The net assets of the Bank increased by 14.69%, reaching Rs. 14.14 billion, during the review period, while the total assets
increased by 7.77% reaching to Rs. 116.46 billion.

Complying with requirements of the regulatory bodies namely, Nepal Rastra Bank and Institute of Chartered Accountants of
Nepal, the Bank was able to post an operating profit of NPR 2.99 billion during the fiscal year after provision for impairment,

with net profit at NPR 1.88 billion.

The status of the Bank as on first quarter end of current fiscal year is presented below:

(In Rs. Millions)
S.N. Particulars As on July 16,2018 | As on Oct 17, 2018 Increase
(Decrease) %
1 Gross Assets 116,462 123,657 6.18
2 Deposits 99,743 103,389 3.65
3 Loans, Overdrafts and Bills 86,847 94,749 9.10

Purchased and Discounted
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During the review period, the Bank wrote off loans to the tune of Rs. 20.936 million whereas the Bank was able to recover

Rs 16.371 million from the loans written off in earlier years.

The Bank Management has been working for recovery of the non-performing, bad and written off loan. We would like to assure

you that this will help in enhancing profitability of the Bank in the coming fiscal year.

Comparative Financial Indicators of the Bank

The comparative financial indicators of the fiscal years 2016/17 and 2017/18 are presented below:

(In Rs. Millions)
S.N. Particulars 2016/2017 2017/2018 Increase
As on July 15 As on July 15 (Decrease) %

Total Assets 108,063 1,16,462 7.77
Net Assets 12,328 14,139 14.69
Deposits 92,881 99,743 7.39
Loans, Overdrafts and Bills Purchased 77,641 86,847 11.86
and Discounted

Net Interest Income 3,933 4,322 9.88
Other Income 1,418 1,308 (7.74)
Operating and Staff Expenses 2,205 2,185 (0.90)
Operating Profit 3,263 2,989 (8.41)
Net Profit 2,282 1,876 (17.80)

The comparative status of deposit, credit, income and expenditure of the Bank during the fiscal year 2016-17 and the year
under review is presented in separate annexes in the report.

National and International Events and their Impact on the Bank

In recent years, the world economy continued to grow sluggishly. Most of the developed countries having dominance over
world economy, particularly the United States of America, European countries, China and India, are finding it difficult to attain
encouraging growth thereby the economic growth of the world, as a whole, has remained lethargic.

However, Nepal has attained encouraging growth during the review period after the dust of political uncertainty and the
country's transition period has settled down.

Nepal Rastra Bank has anticipated the GDP growth rate of 6.3% on the base price during 2017/18, whilst the GDP growth
rate in the previous year was 7.9%. Favorable monsoon rain, improvement in energy supply and simplification on supply
chain has contributed to this highest economic growth. Consumer's average inflation rate remained at 4.2% during the review
period in comparison to last year's 4.5%. The consumer's average inflation rate has decreased to this level for the first time
since the FY: 2004/05.

Total exports during the FY: 2017/18 have increased by 11.1% to Rs. 81.19 billion. Similarly, the import was increased by
25.5% to Rs. 1,242.83 billion in the review period in comparison to last FY. Higher growth in import in comparison to export,
during the review period, had led to increase in trade deficit by 26.7% to Rs. 1161.64 billion. Similarly, deficit in current account
has increased to Rs. 245.22 billion from previous year's Rs. 10.13 billion. Likewise, the surplus in BOP of Rs. 82.11 billion
during the previous FY has recorded surplus to Rs. 960 million only in the review period. Additionally, inflow of remittance
had recorded growth of 8.6% only to Rs. 755.06 billion in the review period. In the corresponding previous year, the remittance
growth rate was only 4.60%. At the end of fiscal year 2017/18, the gross foreign exchange reserves have increased by 2.1%
to Rs. 1102.59 billion compared to fiscal year end 2016/17. The broad money supply during the review period increased by
19.4% as compared to last year's increment of 15.5%.
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During the year under review, the total deposit in the banking sector increased by 19.2% compared to 14.00% in the previous
year. Similarly, the total loans and advances had increased by 22.50% in FY 2017/18 compared to 18.2% in the previous year.
Current Financial and Banking Environment

The economy of the country is still dependent on remittance. But slow growth rate in the remittance inflow, in recent years,
has created doubts about economic stability. Like in the previous years, the banking industry witnessed loanable fund crunch
during the review period too. Despite being subsided in the later months of the review period, lack of loanable fund has again
recurred in the banking industries. Moreover, pursuant to the situation, there is still a doubt that higher interest rate may hinder
the economic growth. Thus, bank has introduced various schemes to attract deposit.

Due to the policy of Nepal Rastra Bank and high competition among banking industries, many financial institutions are in
process of merger. Thus, the number of registered financial institutions excluding micro-finances as of FY 2016/2017 was 96
and it was reduced to 86 as of FY 2017/2018.

Implementation Status of the Strategy and Program of the Bank for the FY 2017/2018
1. Non Performing Loan limited to 1.40 percent as of fiscal year end.

2. As per the branch expansion plan, HBL has opened 13 branches in various parts of the country to reach the total of 55
branches by the fiscal year end 2017/18.

3. Necessary arrangement has been done to extend remittance business to various Asian, European and US market.
4. Different plans and policies have been adopted to improve the service standard of branches and profit center.

5. The total number of ATMs reached to 105 with addition of new ATMs in various locations as per the plan by the fiscal
year end 2017/18.

6. Deposit product, loan product and other banking facilities were made more attractive as per the demand of the general
public.

7. Continuity has been given to the recovery of written-off loans in an active manner.
8. Additional 550 POS terminals have been installed for the convenience of the debit and credit card holders.

9. Continuous effort being made to renovate and expand various branches to make the ambience of branches pleasing
and environment- friendly.

10. T24 banking software browser has been upgraded.

11. Life and non-life insurance business of the bank was broadly extended and promoted through branches after the
establishment of Bancassurance Unit.

Strategies and Programs for FY 2018/2019

1. To establish 6 new branches and additional extension counters within and outside the valley as per branch expansion
plan.

To lower the NPA.
To give continuity to recovery of written-off loans in an active manner.

To introduce new deposits, credit products and innovative banking services.

a » 0D

Deposit product, loan product and other banking facilities shall be made more attractive as per the demand of the general
public.

To set up 20 additional ATMs at various places as well as newly set up branches to total the number to 125.
To install additional 1500 POS machines so as to facilitate debit/credit card holders.

To bring into operation HBL Merchant Bank so as to broaden the bank’s business.

© ®© N o

To renovate and expand various branches to make the ambience of branches pleasant and environment- friendly.

10. To upgrade and fine-tune CBS system T24 technically as per requirement for better performance.
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Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

Since its operation, the Bank has been discharging its corporate social responsibilities through various social and allied
institutions. The Bank, especially in the review period, has focused its CSR activities in the field relating to education, healthcare,
orphanage, differently-abled people, old aged home, sports, culture, preservation of cultural heritages and rehabilitation of
victims of natural calamities and social services.

During review period, under the CSR initiative, the Bank has given financial assistance of Rs. 10,000,000/- to Kathmandu
Valley Preservation Trust for restoration of cultural heritages of Patan Durbar Square which was destroyed during earthquake
of April 2015, Rs. 1,111,111/ to the victims of natural calamities through PM Relief Fund, Rs. 1,008,000/- in support of six
researchers working to maintain financial discipline, Rs. 750,000/- to Spinal Injury Sangh for purchasing wheelchairs for
patients, Rs. 500,000/- to Sahayogi Haat for women empowerment programs, Rs. 1,200,000/- to Maaiti Nepal for helping fight
against girl trafficking and their rehabilitation, OPD Books worth Rs. 199,784/- and Rs. 166,788/- to Shree Siddhi Memorial
Foundation, Bhaktapur and Council of Community Health Services, Dallu respectively, Rs. 135,950/- for preservation of Tridevi
Temple, Rs. 129,024/- to Shree Barak Gan Salleri Dhankuta for water purifier and other cleaning tools, Rs. 135,450/- to
Metropolitan Police Bit, Janasewa for installing informative digital board, Rs. 150,000/- to Nepalgunj Sub-metropolitan City
for purchasing cleaning tools, Rs. 100,000/ to support the social awareness program of Asia for Animal, Rs. 50,000/- to visually
impaired Ms Ichha KC to participate in scholarship program, Rs. 50,000/- to Sunakothi Samaj, Rs. 75,000/- to Orphan and
Helpless Children Development Association in Nepal for purchasing beds, Rs. 100,000/- to Godavari Alumni Association for
children getting treatment in Kanti Hospital etc along with many other social causes.

The Bank is active in the development of sports culture like in the past years. The Bank has sponsored as well as co-sponsored
various sports activities such as Golf, Badminton, Football tournament for deaf students, Judo/Martial Art events, etc.

The Bank is fully aware of its corporate social responsibilities towards the community/nation and is committed to continue
its CSR initiatives in coming days as well.

Board of Directors

During the review period, Mr. Faisal N Lalali (representing Habib Bank Ltd.) was appointed as Director from June 05, 2018
replacing Mr. Ashraf M. Wathra. Similarly, Mr. Tulsi Prasad Gautam (representing Employee Provident Fund) was appointed
as Director effective from June 05, 2018 replacing Mr. Jeetendra Dhital.

Similarly, Mr. Bijay Kumar Shrestha (representing Employee Provident Fund) was appointed as Alternate Director from August
31, 2017 replacing Mr. Shreeram Shekhar Adhikari. Additionally, Mr. Surendra Bikram Thapa (representing Ava International)
was appointed as Alternate Director effective from December 21, 2017 replacing Mr. Bhisma Chudal. Mr. Bhisma Chudal
(representing Ava International), was reappointed as Alternate Director from February 15, 2018 replacing Mr. Surendra Bikram
Thapa. Further, Mr. Sunil Bahadur Thapa (representing Ava International), was appointed as Alternate Director effective from
December 18, 2018 replacing Mr. Bhisma Chudal.

During the review period, Mr. Manoj Bahadur Shrestha (representing N. Trading), Mr. Prachanda Bahadur Shrestha (representing
Chhaya International) have continued as Chairman and Director respectively. Mr. Sushil Bickram Thapa (representing Ava
International) and Mr. Surendra Silwal, representing Public Shareholders, have continued as Director. In addition, Mr. Upendra
Keshari Poudyal, Professional Director, has continued as such in the Bank’s Board of Directors.

Similarly Ms. Menuka Shrestha (representing Chhaya International) and Mrs. Ranjana Shrestha (representing N. Trading)
have continued as Alternate Directors on the Bank’s Board of Directors.

Mr. Himalaya SJB Rana continues to hold the position of Chief Advisor.

We would like to congratulate newly appointed and reappointed Directors and Alternate Directors and are grateful to Former
Directors, Mr. Ashraf M. Wathra and Mr. Jeetendra Dhital and Former Alternate Directors Mr. Shreeram Shekhar Adhikari and
Mr. Surendra Bikram Thapa for their sterling contribution towards the Bank’s progress and prosperity. On this occasion, |
would like to declare that the Board of Directors of the Bank is committed towards prosperity of the Bank.
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Audit and Financial Statements

The Financial Statements of FY: 2017/18 have been prepared as per Nepal Financial Reporting Standard (NFRS) which was
made mandatory by Regulator, Nepal Rastra Bank.

According to the standards, Statement of Financial Position of FY: 2015/16 and Statement of Financial Position and Statement
of Profit and Loss of FY: 2016/17 have been restated as Opening Financial and Comparative Financials respectively and
differencial balances have been adjusted/transferred to Regulatory Reserve as per the instruction of Nepal Rastra Bank.

The Statement of Financial Position as on July 16, 2018, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Statement of Changes in Equity,
the Statement of Cash Flows, related annexures and Auditors’ Report for the fiscal year 2017/18, are enclosed with this report.
Further, information required to be disclosed as per the provisions of Company Act 2063, Chapter 7, Clause 109, Sub-Clause
(4) are also presented as Annex.

Profit and Loss Appropriation

The net profit of the Bank amounted to Rs. 1875.61 million for the fiscal year 2017/18 whereas the total net profit of the bank,
including other comprehensive income, amounted to Rs. 1,896.168 million. Out of this 20% of the net profit i.e. Rs. 375.122
million, has been appropriated to Statutory General Reserve. In addition, the Bank has allocated Rs. 85.714 million from its
profit and transferred it to the Bond Repayment Reserve for the Bond issued worth Rs. 600 million. Additionally, as per the
circular of Regulatory Body, the Bank has transferred Rs. 18.756 million in the reserve for its Corporate Social Responsibility
and Rs. 20.375 million has been transferred to Employee Training Reserve. Out of the fund transferred to various Reserves
in the previous years, Rs. 48.66 Million is also available for distribution.

For fiscal year 2017/18, distribution of 5% bonus share and 10.7895% cash dividend have been proposed. For the proposed
bonus shares and cash dividends, an amount of Rs. 405,726,469/- and Rs. 875,517,147/- respectively will be utilised. After
the distribution of the proposed bonus shares, the paid-up capital of the Bank will be Rs. 8,520,255,844/-. We are proud that
the Bank has been able to propose good returns in the form of cash dividends and bonus shares to its shareholders this year
as well despite of adversities.

Vote of Thanks

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | would like to extend sincere thanks to the shareholders, esteemed customers, related
divisions of the Government of Nepal such as Finance Ministry, Nepal Rastra Bank, Security Board of Nepal (SEBON), Nepal
Stock Exchange, Company Registrar Office, CDS and Clearing Ltd, Credit Information Bureau of Nepal, Deposit and Credit
Guarantee Fund and all the other Regulatory Bodies for their guidance and invaluable support in discharging banking services.
| would also like to place on record special thanks to the management of our joint venture partner Habib Bank Limited,
Pakistan, the Bank’s Chief Executive Officer and the entire staff for making dynamic contributions to the progress and prosperity
of the Bank. Finally, | would like to extend hearty thanks to the media for giving wide coverage to our activities and to all our
well-wishers.

Thank you.

On behalf of the Board of Directors

Manoj Bahadur Shrestha
Chairman
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PRINCIPAL INDICATORS

FY FY FY FY FY FY
Particulars Unit 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2016/17 2017/18
2070/M 2071/72 2072/13 2072/13 2073/74 2074/75
Restated
Profit before Bonus and Tax/Total Income Percent 26.25 23.08 42.89 36.48 40.93 26.15
Per Share Income Rs. 33.10 33.37 43.03 33.55 35.15 23.11
Per Share Market Value Rs. 94 813 1500 886 886 551
Price Earning Ratio Ratio 28.43 24.36 34.86 26.40 25.21 23.84
Dividend on Share Capital (Including Bonus) Percent 21.05 42.11 31.58 26.32 26.32 15.79
Cash Dividend on Share Capital Percent 6.05 711 1.58 1.32 1.32 10.79
Interest Income/Loan and Advances Percent 10.21 8.35 7.26 8.94 9.52 11.64
Staff Expenses/Total Operating Expenses Percent 42.49 45.66 52.96 56.01 56.34 53.02
Interest Expenses on Total Deposit Percent 3.48 2.66 1.79 3.42 3.52 5.61
FX Fluctuation Gain/Total Income Percent 5.67 6.84 8.55 6.52 7.00 5.81
Net Profit after Tax/Total Assets (ROA) Ratio 1.30 1.34 1.94 2.03 2.19 1.67
Net Profit after Tax/Total Equity (ROE) Percent 16.85 17.06 24.53 21.22 21.58 1417
Total Loan/Deposits Percent 71.82 75.37 79.12 83.59 85.10 88.31
Total Operating Expenses/Total Income Percent 27.12 30.44 28.23 23.97 22.36 16.96
Capital Adequacy Ratio:
A. Core Capital Percent 9.03 9.48 9.43 10.93 10.93 11.40
B. Supplementary Capital Percent 2.20 1.66 1.41 1.22 1.22 1.06
C. Total Capital Fund Percent 11.23 11.14 10.84 12.15 12.15 12.46
Liquidity Percent 37.52 30.32 28.74 26.64 26.64 23.05
Non-performing Loan/Total Loan Percent 1.96 3.22 1.23 0.85 0.85 1.40
Weighted Average Interest Rate Spread Percent 4.54 4.35 4.59 4.44 4.44 4.70
Book Networth per share Rs. 210 208.81 196.12 180.31 189.91 174.24
Total Share Number | 28,980,000 | 33,327,000 | 44,991,450 [ 64,916,235 | 64,916,235 | 81,145,294
Total Staff Number 835 856 857 835 835 834
Number of Branches Number 42 42 42 47 47 55
Number of ATMs Number 78 80 84 93 93 105

e Figures of FY 2073/74 has been regrouped/restated based on NFRS wherever necessary.

e Figures for FY 2074/75 have been presented based on NFRS.

e Staff Bonus has not been considered while calculating the ratios for Staff Expenses and Operating expenses

28 | 26th Annual Report




\ frr i e
Himalayan Bank Ltd.
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Deposits-From Customers and BFls

Financial Year 2073/74 (2016/2017)  Financial Year 2074/75 (2017/2018)

Other Deposit Other Deposit
1. 937 2 13%
Current Deposit Current Deposit
Call Deposit 9 72% Call Deposit 10 03%
6.91% 6.69%
Fixed DeBosr[ Saving Deposit Fixed Deposit Saving Deposit
40.38% 41.06% 42 05% 39.10%

Loans and advances

Financial Year 2073/74 (2016/2017)  Financial Year 2074/75 (2017/2018)

Deprived Bills Purchased &

; Discounted Deprived
Hire Purchase  Sector Loan 2019% Hire Purchase  Sector Loan Bills Purchased &
Loan 4.85% Other Loan Loan 477% Discounted  Qther Loan

Margin ~ 8.69%
Lending
3.18%

9.67% Margin ~ 7.49%

Lending
Term Loan 1.55%

16.47%

0.08% 8.80%

Term Loan
16.42%

Real Working Capital Working Capital
Estate Import/ Loan Estate Import/ Loan
4.48% Export 39.59% 4.38% Export 40.22%

10.17% 16.29%
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Income Composition

Financial Year 2073/74 (2016/2017) Financial Year 2074/75 (2017/2018)

Other Operating Other Operating
Feeand  NetTrading Income Fee and Net Trading Income
Commission lincome 1.01% Commission lincome 0.93%
Income 7.08% Income 6.35%

9.14% 6.82%

Interest Income Interest Income
82.77% 85.90%

Expense Composition

Financial Year 2073/74 (2016/2017) Financial Year 2074/75 (2017/2018)

Staff Expenses- Staff Expenses-
excluding bonus

. Other Operating Expense excluding bonus Other Operating Expense
2247 12.55% 14.64% 9.72%

Interest Expense Interest Expense
64.99% 75.64%
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ADDITIONAL DISCLOSURE AS PER SECTION 109 (4) OF

1)

2)

3)

4)

5)

6)

7)

8)

COMPANIES ACT, 2063

Detail of Share Forfeiture:

No shares were forfeited during the year.

Transaction with Subsidiaries:

The Bank has no subsidiaries

Information provided to the Company by its Substantial Shareholders:

NIL

Shares purchased by Directors and Officials of the Company during the year:

No such transaction was reported to the Bank.

Information received on the personal interest of Directors and their close relatives in any Agreement/Contract
entered by the Company:

No such information was received during the year.

Detail of Share Buy-Back during the year:

The Bank didn’t buy-back its own shares during the year.

Detail of Internal Control System:

The Bank has a very effective Internal Control System in operation which has the following major components:

—_

Strong internal checks and controls

)
2) Operation Manuals, Comprehensive policies, procedures and guidelines for orderly conduct of operations.
3) Credit Policy Guidelines and various manuals
4) Compliance & Internal Control Department for monitoring compliance of & periodic review of internal control system
5) Independent Internal Audit & Inspection Department
6) Periodic review of internal controls and significant audit issues by Audit Committee.

Total Management expenses during the year:

Personal Expenses : Rs. 1,045,730,199
Other Operating Expenses Rs. 694,270,758
Depreciation & Amortization : Rs. 168,276,177
Total : Rs 1,908,277,134

* Personnel Expenses is excluding Employee Bonus, which is shown as personnel expense in financials under NFRS.
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9) List of Audit Committee members, their remuneration and facilities and description (and suggestions if any) of
the Committee’s performance during the year:

Audit Committee members:

1) Mr. Sushil Bickram Thapa Co-ordinator
2) Mr. Surendra Silwal Member
3) Mr. Ramesh K. Dhital (Team Leader — SAR Associates) Member secretary

The Committee members have been paid no other remuneration/facility other than the under-mentioned per meeting
fees:

Co-ordinator: Members:
Rs. 10,000 Rs. 8,000
The Committee conducted 16 meetings during the FY 2074/75 during which it, among others:
1) Reviewed Internal Audit Reports and gave necessary instruction to the Management for resolution of audit issues.
2) Reviewed investigation reports and made various recommendations to the Board of Directors.

3) Reviewed Annual Accounts and Auditors Preliminary Audit Report issued by Statutory Auditors, Nepal Rastra Bank
inspection report and recommended their adoption by the Board of Directors after incorporation of the
directives/instructions issued by the Committee.

4) Directed the Management to improve Internal Control system and procedures and recommended amendments to
Manuals, Policies and procedures for improvement and effective control, wherever necessary.

10) Amount receivable by the Company from Directors, Managing Director, Substantial Shareholders and their close
relatives and associated firms, Companies etc:

NIL

11) Remuneration, Allowances and facilities given to Directors, Managing Director, Chief Executive Officer and
Officials during the year:

MANAGERIAL REMUNERATION for the purpose of section 109 (4)
S.No. Particulars Directors CEO Managers
1 Meeting Fees 1,394,000 - -
2 Salary - 7,694,219 115,369,354
3 Allowances - 6,804,411 85,927,164
4 PF Contribution - - 10,030,611
5 Telephone / Mobile / Utilities 195,684 420,915 15,362,773
6 Others 2,492,216 657,458 28,533,634
Total 4,081,900 15,577,003 255,223,536
7 Vehicle Facility No ** Yes Yes
8 Accommodation No No *** No
9 Insurance Coverage Yes Yes Yes
Number of persons 11 1 97
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Notes:

1) **Office vehicle with fuel and maintenance is provided to the CEO, General Manager, Deputy General Managers,
Assistant General Managers and Ex-Pat (Sr. General Manager). Driver is provided to CEO, General Manager,
Deputy General Managers and Ex-Pat (Sr. General Manager). The Managers are given vehicle under OYVS scheme
with fuel as per the Bank’s policy.

2) ***Fully furnished accommodation at Bank’s cost is provided to the Ex-pats. & outside valley branch managers.
3) (a) Directors are covered with medical insurance of Rs. 200,000 and Accident Insurance policy of Rs. 3,000,000.

b) All Managers are covered for Accidental Insurance, Medical Insurance and Life Insurance as per the Bank’s
Staff Service By-laws. CEO and Ex-pats are covered for Accidental Insurance and Medical Insurance as per
their terms of contract.

4) Telephone bill is paid by the Bank on actual basis for CEO. In case of SGM & GM reimbursement up to a maximum
of Rs. 12,000 and Rs. 8,000 respectively per month is made by the Bank.

5) Water and Electricity bill is reimbursed to the CEO and GM up to approved limit.

6) Bonus as per Bonus Act, 1974 was paid to all employees except the ex-pat. Senior General Manager was paid
Performance Bonus amounting to USD 12,000 (net of tax).

12) Amount of Dividend remaining unpaid:

Total Unpaid Dividend : Rs. 31,980,755 as on Asar 32, 2075.

13) Others matters required to be disclosed in the Directors’ Report by this Act or others Laws in force:
NIL

14) Other relevant issues:
NIL

Manoj Bahadur Shrestha
Chairman
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Securities Registration and Issuance Rule 2073, Annex 15
(Related to Rules 26-2)

Report of the Board of Directors: Enclosed separately with this annual report.
Report of the Auditor: Enclosed separately with this annual report.
Audited Financial Report: Enclosed separately with this annual report.

A

Details pertaining to Legal Action:

a. No legal suit (having major impact on banking operation) has been filed by or against the organization during the
review quarter period. However, a legal suit in relation to a performance bond guarantee issued by the bank involving
a substantial amount is ongoing in Kathmandu District Court and a court in China. The amount under the said
guarantee has already been paid to the beneficiary.

b. No legal suit related to criminal activity has been filed by or against the directors and promoters of the Bank during
the period.

c. No legal suit has been filed against any director of the organization for any kind actions related to financial crime.

5. Analysis pertaining to Share Transaction and Progress of the Organization:
a) Opinion of the management regarding share transaction of the organization in security market:

Since shares of the organization are traded on the basis of the trust of investors towards the organization and analysis
of its returns, no major fluctuations are noted in the share price of the Bank and there has been satisfactory trading of
shares in the capital market.

Quarter wise maximum share price, minimum share price, last share price and total no of share transaction of organization
during each quarter period of review year.

Quarter Maximum Minimum Closing Total No. of No. of

Price Price Price Share Traded Days
1stQtr  Ashwin end 2074 932 820 893 186,187 56
2nd Qtr Poush end 2074 900 590 660 197,285 57
3rd Qtr  Chaitra end 2074 681 560 610 191,614 55
4th Qtr  Ashad end 2075 682 535 551 121,523 62

6. Problems and Challenges:

The Bank has considered the following domestic and international impediments as its problems and challenges:
Risk concentration on both asset and liability sides has increased owing to lack of adequate business sectors
The market is still overcrowded with financial institutions with intensified competition
Rise in inflation
Lack of basic infrastructure such as roadways, connectivity, energy
Policy uncertainties hence warding off investments
Depressive global economy leading to slow down in remittance growth
The continued effect of substantial increase in cost of fund
The constraint faced by the industry as regards loanable fund

7. Corporate Governance:

Board of Directors:

Committees like Risk Management Committee, Employee Management Benefit Committee, AML / CFT Committee,
Management Credit Committee, Assets Liabilities Management Committee have been constituted to carry out banking
operations related decisions and these committees have been actively involved in major policy/plans related decisions.

Internal Control System:

In order to strengthen the internal control mechanism of the Bank, a separate independent internal audit department has
been established. The internal audit department carries out audit of various departments on a continuous manner and
makes necessary recommendations to the Audit Committee. Accordingly, Audit Committee holds regular meetings to
analyze the recommendations and bring about necessary changes.

Internal policies, regulations and directives:

In order to carry out various functionalities smoothly and to mitigate risks emanating from business functions, the Bank
has instilled a sound operations system. All activities of the Bank are guided by strong internal policies. The Bank has a
system to monitor compliance with all regulatory and statutory requirements.
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BRS Neupane & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Kumari Marg, House No. 43
P.O. Box 8137, Naxal,
Kathmandu, Nepal

Tel : 977-1- 4411314
Fax : 977-1- 4420572 BRS Neupane
E-mail : chartered@brs.com.np
Web : www.brs.com.np & co_
Independent Auditors’ Report
to

The Shareholders of Himalayan Bank Limited

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Himalayan Bank Limited, which
comprise the statement of financial position as at 32" Ashad 2075 (corresponding July 16,
2018), statement of profit or loss, statement of comprehensive income, statement of change in
equity, statement of cash flows, statement of distributable profit for the year then ended, and
significant accounting policies, notes to account and other explanatory notes.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards. This responsibility includes: designing,
implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error;
selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are
reasonable in the circumstances. '

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit in
accordance with Nepal Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.

An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

A member of

Nexia

international
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Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Himalayan Bank Limited as at 32" Ashad 2075 (Corresponding July 16, 2018)
and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Nepal
Financial Reporting Standards and Company Act 2063.

Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

We have obtained information and explanations asked for, which, to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit, In our opinion, the statement of financial
position, the statement of profit or loss account, statement of comprehensive income, statement
of change in equity, statement of cash flows, statement of distributable profit for the year then
ended, and significant accounting policies, notes to account and other explanatory notes,
prepared in the format prescribed by Nepal Rastra Bank, are in agreement with the books of
accounts of the bank; and proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
bank.

In our opinion the returns from the branches are adequate for the purpose of the audit though the
statements are independently not audited.

In our opinion, so far as appeared from our examination of the books, the bank has maintained
adequate capital funds and adequate provisions for possible impairment of assets in acco.Jdance
with the directives of Nepal Rastra Bank.

To the best of our information and according to explanations given to us and from our
examination of the books of accounts of the bank necessary for our audit purpose, we have not
come across cases where board of directors or any employees of the bank have acted contrary to
the provisions of law, or committed any misappropriation or caused loss or damage to the bank
and violated any directives of Nepal Rastra Bank or acted in a manner to put at risk the interest
and security of the bank, its depositiors and investors.

Date : December 18, 2018 CA. Anup K. Shrestha
Place : Kathmandu, Nepal Managing Partner
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Himalayan Bank Limited

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As on 32 Asar 2075 (16 July 2018)

Particulars Note Asar 2075 Asar 2074 Shrawan 1, 2073
(Restated)

Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents 4.1 4,741,359,383 4,734,344,144 7,209,691,163
Due from Nepal Rastra Bank 4.2 5,159,259,737 6,141,151,917 5,677,702,310
Placements with Bank and Financial Institutions 4.3 4,989,524,816 6,272,030,993 4,623,810,955
Derivative financial instruments 4.4 33,444,999 42,242,179 25,568,291
Other trading assets 4.5 - - -
Loans & Advances to BFls 4.6 3,685,218,985 3,326,425,986 2,681,864,734
Loans & Advances to Customers 4.7 82,474,993,680 74,471,809,727 66,269,388,255
Investment Securities 4.8 11,654,171,810 9,648,796,681 11,190,957,071
Current Tax Assets 4.9 154,307,606 28,113,687 71,317,586
Investments in subsidiaries 4.10 - - -
Investments in Associates 4.11 195,785,700 195,785,700 195,785,700
Investment Property 4,12 2,299,307 233,378,063 216,578,063
Property & Equipment 413 2,222,677,268 2,175,892,639 1,922,966,663
Goodwill and Intangible Assets 414 85,852,688 76,025,808 108,694,657
Deferred Tax Assets 415 - - -
Other Assets 416 1,063,405,401 717,254,859 367,569,417
Total Assets 116,462,301,380 | 108,063,252,383 | 100,561,894,865
Liabilities
Due to Bank and Financial Institutions 417 754,253,957 586,660,683 1,902,629,819
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank 4.18 - - -
Derivative financial instruments 4.19 9,109,574 - -
Deposits from Customers 4.20 98,988,791,212 92,334,454,668 86,433,180,688
Borrowing 4.21 - - -
Current Tax Liabilities 4.9 - - -
Provisions 4.22 2,299,307 233,378,063 216,578,063
Deferred Tax Liabilities 4.15 131,264,033 123,265,472 107,155,033
Other Liabilities 4.23 1,814,328,754 1,834,350,972 1,959,748,985
Debt Securities Issued 4.24 623,357,548 622,996,759 622,760,909
Subordinated Liabilities 4.25 - - -

Total Liabilities

102,323,404,385

95,735,106,617

91,242,053,497

Equity

Share Capital
Share Premium
Retained Earnings
Reserves

4.26 8,114,529,375

1,500,405,440
4.27 4,523,962,180

6,491,623,500

2,508,023,157
3,328,499,109

4,499,145,000

2,086,979,520
2,733,716,848

Total Equity attributable to Equity Holders

14,138,896,995

12,328,145,766

9,319,841,368

Non Controlling Interest
Total Equity

14,138,896,995

12,328,145,766

9,319,841,368

Total Liabilities and Equity

116,462,301,380

108,063,252,383

100,561,894,865

Contingent liabilities and commitment
Net assets value per share

428 | 36,183,796,482
174

27,412,632,440
190

28,554,156,497
207

Satish Raj Joshi
Executive Financial Officer

Sushiel Joshi
General Manager

Ejaz Qadeer Gill
Senior General Manager

Ashoke SJB Rana

Mr. Manoj B. Shrestha

Chief Executive Officer Chairman

Mr. Faisal N. Lalani

Director Director

Mr. Sunil Bahadur Thapa

Alternate Director Director

Mr. Prachanda B. Shrestha

Mr. Upendra Keshari Poudyal

Mr. Tulasi Prasad Gautam
Director

As per our attached report of even date

Anup K. Shrestha, FCA
Managing Partner
BRS Neupane & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Tuesday, December 18, 2018
Kathmandu
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Himalayan Bank Limited

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
For the year ended 32 Asar 2075 (16 July 2018)

Particulars Note Asar 2075 Asar 2074

Interest Income 4.29 9,724,870,892 7,106,676,099
Interest Expense 4.30 5,403,047,172 3,173,333,669
Net interest income 4,321,823,720 3,933,342,430
Fee and Commission Income 4.31 772,037,821 784,751,770
Fee and Commission Expenses 4.32 64,236,793 52,555,234
Net Fee and Commission Income 707,801,028 732,196,536
Net interest, fee and commission income 5,029,624,748 4,665,538,966
Net Trading Income 4.33 718,904,848 607,848,833
Other Operating Income 4.34 104,848,090 86,395,915
Total Operating Income 5,853,377,686 5,359,783,714
Impairment charges/(reversal) for Loans and Other losses 4.35 679,917,035 (108,192,806)
Net operating income 5,173,460,651 5,467,976,520
Operating expense
Personnel Expenses 4.36 1,322,248,139 1,407,137,324
Other Operating Expenses 4.37 694,270,758 612,696,327
Depreciation & Amortisation 4.38 168,276,177 184,907,222
Operating Profit 2,988,665,577 3,263,235,647
Non operating income 4.39 309,525,238 14,691,243
Non operating expense 4.40 533,011,412 23,325,656
Profit before income tax 2,765,179,403 3,254,601,234
Income Tax Expense 4.41

Current Tax 877,612,392 947,097,805

Deferred Tax 11,956,544 25,729,238
Profit for the year 1,875,610,467 2,281,774,191
Profit attributable to:

Equity holders of the Bank 1,875,610,467 2,281,774,191

Non-controlling interest - -
Profit for the year 1,875,610,467 2,281,774,191
Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share 23.37 35.44

Diluted earnings per share 23.37 35.44

Sushiel Joshi
General Manager

Satish Raj Joshi As per our attached report of even date

Executive Financial Officer

Ejaz Qadeer Gill
Senior General Manager

Ashoke SJB Rana Mr. Manoj B. Shrestha

Chief Executive Officer Chairman Anup K. Shrestha, FCA

Managing Partner
BRS Neupane & Co.
Mr. Faisal N. Lalani Mr. Prachanda B. Shrestha Mr. Tulasi Prasad Gautam Chartered Accountants

Director Director Director
4 " ! Tuesday, December 18, 2018

Kathmandu
Mr. Sunil Bahadur Thapa Mr. Upendra Keshari Poudyal
Alternate Director Director
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Himalayan Bank Limited

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the year ended 32 Asar 2075 (16 July 2018)

Particulars

Note

Asar 2075

Asar 2074

Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income, net of income tax

a) ltems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

1,875,610,467

2,281,774,191

- Gains/(losses) from investments in equity instruments measured (13,193,277) (32,062,664)
at fair value
- Gains/(losses) on revaluation - -
- Actuarial gains/(losses) on defined benefit plans 29,792,839 31,495,017
- Income tax relating to above items 3,957,983 9,618,799
Net other comprehensive income that will not be reclassified to 20,557,545 9,051,152
profit or loss
b) Items that are or may be reclassified to profit or loss
- Gains/(losses) on cash flow hedge - -
- Exchange gains/(losses) (arising from translating financial - -
assets of foreign operation)
- Income tax relating to above items - -
- Reclassify to profit or loss - -
Net other comprehensive income that are or may be reclassified
to profit or loss - -
c) Share of other comprehensive income of associate accounted - -
as per equited method
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of income tax 20,557,545 9,051,152

Total comprehensive income for the year

1,896,168,012

2,290,825,343

Total comprehensive income attributable to:
Equity holders of the Bank
Non-controlling interest

1,896,168,012

2,290,825,343

Total comprehensive income for the period

1,896,168,012

2,290,825,343

Satish Raj Joshi
Executive Financial Officer

Ashoke SJB Rana
Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Faisal N. Lalani
Director

Mr. Sunil Bahadur Thapa
Alternate Director

Sushiel Joshi
General Manager

Mr. Manoj B. Shrestha
Chairman

Mr. Prachanda B. Shrestha
Director

Mr. Upendra Keshari Poudyal

Director

Ejaz Qadeer Gill
Senior General Manager

Mr. Tulasi Prasad Gautam
Director

As per our attached report of even date

Anup K. Shrestha, FCA
Managing Partner
BRS Neupane & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Tuesday, December 18, 2018
Kathmandu
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Himalayan Bank Limited

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the year ended 32 Asar 2075 (16 July 2018)

Particulars Asar 2075 Asar 2074

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Interest received 9,307,833,312 6,910,929,341
Fees and other income received 850,208,832 846,248,632
Divided received - -
Receipts from other operating activities 16,371,060 10,408,002
Interest paid (5,373,959,963) (2,742,933,449)
Commission and fees paid (64,236,793) (52,555,234)

Cash payment to employees
Other expense paid

(1,339,474,335)
(743,334,398)

(1,282,583,287)
(609,922,304)

Operating cash flows before changes in operating assets and liabilities

2,653,407,715

3,079,591,701

(Increase)/Decrease in operating assets

Due from Nepal Rastra Bank

Placement with bank and financial institutions

Other trading assets

Loan and advances to bank and financial institutions
Loans and advances to customers

Other assets

981,892,180
1,290,684,047
(358,406,256)

(8,868,199,821)

(44,717,953)

(463,449,607
(1,756,942,433

(7,910,085,117

)
)
(652,113,581)
)
(422,151,237)

Increase/(Decrease) in operating liabilities
Due to bank and financial institutions

Due to Nepal Rastra Bank

Deposit from customers

Borrowings

(6,998,747,803)
167,594,370

6,654,336,544

(11,204,741,975)
(1,315,945,574)

5,901,273,978

Other liabilities (391,389,583) (5083,942,737)
Net cash flow from operating activities before tax paid 6,430,541,331 4,081,385,667
Income taxes paid (1,003,806,311) (903,893,906)

Net cash flow from operating activities

1,081,394,932

(4,947,658,513)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of investment securities

Receipts from sale of investment securities
Purchase of property and equipment

Receipt from the sale of property and equipment
Purchase of intangible assets

Receipt from the sale of intangible assets
Purchase of investment properties

Receipt from the sale of investment properties
Interest received

Dividend received

(15,108,205,471)
13,162,845,600
(199,688,334)
20,932,209
(45,310,356)

251,976,376
241,116,731
48,597,350

(7,651,723,441)
9,107,341,445
(399,941,248)
18,592,555
(23,236,529)

193,391,040
26,227,567

Net cash used in investing activities

(1,627,735,895)

1,270,651,389

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Receipt from issue of debt securities

Repayment of debt securities

Receipt from issue of subordinated liabilities
Repayment of subordinated liabilities

Receipt from issue of shares

Dividends paid

Interest paid

Other receipt/payment

(50,000)

(75,238,708
(47,645,840

| — =

(10,275,000)

765,829,283
(115,648,788)
(47,867,585)

Net cash from financing activities (122,934,548) 592,037,910
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (669,275,511) (3,084,969,214)
Cash and cash equivalents at Shrawan 1, 2074 4,734,344,144 7,209,691,163
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash and cash equivalents held 676,290,750 609,622,195

Cash and cash equivalents at Asar end 2075

4,741,359,383

4,734,344,144
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STATEMENT OF DISTRIBUTABLE PROFIT OR LOSS
For the year ended 32 Asar 2075 (16 July 2018)
(As per NRB Regulation)

Particulars

Asar 2075

Asar 2074

Net profit or (loss) as per statement of profit or loss

Appropriations:

-~ 0 O 0O T ®

. General reserve

. Foreign exchange fluctuation fund

. Capital redemption reserve

. Corporate social responsibility fund
. Employees’ training fund

Other
- Capital Adjustment Reserve
- Bond Redemption Reserve

1,875,610,467

(375,122,093)

(18,756,105)
(20,375,572)

(85,714,286)

2,281,774,191

(435,646,979)
(443,341)

(21,782,349)

(19,362,924)
(85,714,286)

Profit or (loss) before regulatory adjustment

1,375,642,411

1,718,824,312

Regulatory adjustment:

>oQ ™ 0o o 0 T o

. Interest receivable (-)/previous accrued interest received (+)

. Short loan loss provision in accounts (-)/reversal (+)

. Short provision for possible losses on investment (-)/reversal (+)
. Short loan loss provision on Non Banking Assets (-)/resersal (+)
. Deferred tax assets recognised (-)/ reversal (+)

Goodwill recognised (-)/ impairment of Goodwill (+)

. Bargain purchase gain recognised (-)/reversal (+)
. Actuarial loss recognised (-)/reversal (+)

Other (+/-)

(681,321,143)

(2,299,307)

(89,977,401)

Distributable profit or (loss)

652,044,560

1,718,824,312
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 32 Asar 2075 (16 July 2018)

1. REPORTING ENTITY
1.1 Corporate Information

Himalayan Bank Limited (“the Bank”) is a public limited liability company domiciled in Nepal, with its corporate office
in Kamaladi, Kathmandu, Nepal. The Bank is operating through 56 branches, one extension counter and one overseas
representative office. The shares of the Bank are listed in Nepal Stock Exchange Limited.

1.2 Principal Activities

The Bank is licensed by Nepal Rastra Bank, the central bank of Nepal, to carry out commercial banking activities in
Nepal as class ‘A’ financial institution under the Bank and Financial Institution Act, 2073. The Bank provides a
comprehensive range of financial services that include accepting deposits, corporate and retail lending, project financing,
trade financing, fund transfer. The Bank also offers remittance services, card services and other ancillary services like
safe deposit locker services as well as a wide range of electronic banking facilities.

1.3 Parent Entity and Ultimate Parent Entity

The Bank is not a subsidiary of any entity and also does not have any subsidiary.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION
2.1 Statement of Compliance

The Financial Statements of the Bank which comprise of the Statement of Financial Position, Statement of Profit or Loss,
Statement of Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes in Equity, Statement of Cash flow and Significant Accounting
Policies and Notes have been prepared in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards (NFRSs) laid down
by the Accounting Standards Board of Nepal, except where alternative treatments have been adopted in line with carve-
outs approved by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal, the accounting regulating body of the country. The
financial statements are in compliance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2063.

For all periods, up to and including the year ended on Asar 31, 2074 (15 July 2017) the Bank prepared the financial
statements in accordance with the Nepal Accounting Standards. The financial statements for the year ended on
Asar 32, 2075 (16 July 2018) are the first set of financial statements prepared in accordance with NFRS.

2.2 Reporting period and approval of financial statements

The financial statements cover the financial year commencing on Shrawan 01, 2074 and ending on Asar 32, 2075
(16 July 2017-16 July 2018)). The financial statements were authorized for issue in accordance with the resolution of
the Board of Directors dated Poush 3, 2075 (18 December 2018).

2.3 Functional and presentation currency

Nepalese Rupees is the functional and presentation currency of the Bank as it is the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the Bank operates. Hence, items included in the Financial Statements are presented in Nepalese
Rupees.

2.4 Use of estimates, assumptions and judgments

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with NFRSs requires management to make judgments, estimates
and assumptions for application of accounting policies that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. Actual results may differ from the estimates so made. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis and the effect of revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the
estimate is revised and in any future periods affected. The most significant uses of judgment and estimates are as
follows:

(a) Going concern

The Bank’s management has made an assessment of the Bank’s ability to continue as a going concern and is
satisfied that the Bank has the resources to continue in business for the foreseeable future. Furthermore, management
is not aware of any material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt upon the Bank’s ability to continue as a
going concern. Therefore, the financial statements continue to be prepared on the going concern basis.
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(b) Fair value of financial instruments

Where the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded on the statement of financial position cannot
be derived from active markets, they are determined using judgment; to establish fair values. The judgments include
considerations of liquidity and model inputs such as volatility for longer dated derivatives and discount rates,
prepayment rates and default rate assumptions for asset backed securities.

(c) Impairment losses on loans and advances

As per the carve-out approved by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal, Bank and Financial Institutions
shall measure impairment loss on loans and advances as the higher of the amount derived as perrule-based norms
prescribed by the Regulator and the amount determined as per paragraph 63 of NAS 39, with proper disclosures
of the same. Accordingly, the Bank has assessed impairment loss under both norms and impairment provided in
the financial statements is the impairment under norms prescribed by the Regulator with separate disclosure of
impairment calculated under NAS 39.

(d) Impairment of Equity Instruments

The Bank records impairment charges on quoted equity investments by comparing with the fair market value as
on the reporting date. In case of un-quoted equity investments, impairment is recorded only where there is objective
evidence of permanent decline in the value of investment.

(e) Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognized in respect of tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will
be available against which the losses can be utilized. Judgment is required to determine the amount of deferred
tax assets that can be recognized, based upon the likely timing and level of future taxable profits, together with
future tax planning strategies.

(f) Taxation

The Bank is subject to income taxes. Significant judgment was required to determine the total provision for current
and deferred taxes pending the issue of tax guideline on the treatment of the adoption of NFRSs in the financial
statements and the taxable profit for the purpose of imposition of taxes. Uncertainties exist, with respect to the
interpretation of the applicability of tax laws, at the time of the preparation of these financial statements.

The Bank recognized assets and liabilities for current, deferred and other taxes based on estimates of whether
additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such differences will impact the income of that year.

(9) Defined Benefit plan

The cost of the defined benefit plan is determined using actuarial valuation. The actuarial valuation involves making
assumptions about discount rates, salary increment rate, age of retirement, and mortality rates, among other things.
Due to the long-term nature of these plans, such estimates are subject to significant uncertainty. The assumptions
used for valuation is disclosed in detail in Note 4.23

(h) Materiality

In compliance with NAS 01 on Presentation of Financial Statements, each material class of similar items is presented
separately in the Financial Statements. ltems of dissimilar nature or functions too are presented separately, if they
are material.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statement of financial position
only when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle
on a net basis, or to realize the assets and settle the liability simultaneously. Income and expense is not offset in
the income statement unless required or permitted by any accounting standard or interpretation, and as specifically
disclosed in the accounting policies of the Bank.

(i) Useful lives of property & equipment

The Bank reviews the useful lives, methods and rate of depreciation of property, & equipment ateach reporting date.
Judgment of the management is exercised in the estimationof these values, rates, methods and hence they are
subject to uncertainty. Details regarding the useful lives of property and equipment are disclosed in Note 3.7.

The depreciable amount of an asset has been allocated on a systematic basis over its useful life using diminishing
balance method. The systematic basis has however been determined using the best management’s judgement.

(j) Fair Value of Investment Property

Non-Banking Assets, which are assets mortgaged with the bank and subsequently taken over by the Bank in the
course of recovery of the loan, are shown under Investment Properties. The value at which such assets are taken
over in line with the guidelines issued by the Regulator have been considered as fair value of such assets.
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2.6

3.2

3.3

3.4

Changes in Accounting Policies

There has been no significant change in the accounting policies adopted by the bank except where required due to
adoption of Nepal Financial Reporting Standards.

Discounting

Discounting has only been used for actuarial valuation. The assumptions used for valuation is disclosed in detail in Note
4.23

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of Measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for the following material items in the
Statement of financial position, all of which are measured at fair value.

- Investment in equity instruments measured at FVTOCI

- Investment Property

Basis of Consolidation

The bank has no subsidiaries and hence no consolidation of financial statements is required.
Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash-in-hand, balances with other bank and financial institutions, money at call
and short notice, and highly liquid financial assets with original maturities of three months or less from the acquisition
date that are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in their fair value, and are used by the Bank in the management
of its short-term commitments. Cash and cash equivalents are carried at amortized cost in the Statement of Financial
Position.

Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

The Bank determines the classification of its financial instruments (assets and liabilities)at initial recognition. The

classification of financial instruments is done as:

- Financial assets or liabilities held-for-trading

- Financial assets or liabilities held at fair value through profit or loss

- Financial Instruments measured at amortized cost

- Financial Investments at FVTOCI

(a) Recognition
All financial assets and liabilities are initially recognized on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Bank becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. This includes “regular way trades”: purchases or sales of

financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame generally established by regulation or convention
in the market place.

(b) Classification

The classification of financial instruments at initial recognition depends on the purpose and the management’s
intention for which the financial instruments are acquired and their characteristics.

I.  Financial assets or liabilities held—for-trading

Financial assets / liabilities held for the purpose of selling in the short term and for which there is a recent pattern
of short term profit taking. The Bank has not designated any financial assets and liabilities upon initial recognition
as held for trading.

II. Financial assets or liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss

Management designates an instrument at fair value through profit or loss upon initial recognition when the
designation eliminates or significantly reduces the inconsistent treatment that would otherwise arise from
measuring the assets or liabilities or recognizing gains or losses on them on a different basis.

The Bank has not designated any financial assets and liabilities upon initial recognition as at fair value through
profit or loss.
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lll. Financial Instruments measured at amortized cost

These financial investments are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed
maturities, which the Bank has the intention and ability to hold to maturity. After initial measurement, such
financial investments are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the Effective Interest Rate(EIR), less
impairment. Amortized cost is generally calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition
and fees that are an integral part of the EIR.

Included in this classification are loans and advances, treasury bills, government bonds and other debt securities.
IV. Financial investments at fair value through other comprehensive income.

These investments include equity and debt securities. Equity investments classified as FVOCI are those which
are neither classified as held—for-trading nor designated at fair value through profit or loss. After initial
measurement, such financial investments are subsequently measured at fair value.

(c) Measurement

All financial instruments are measured initially at their fair value plus transaction costs, except in the case of financial
assets and financial liabilities recorded at fair value through profit or loss.

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their classification as described below:

1) Financial assets or financial liabilities held-for-trading

Financial assets or financial liabilities held—for-trading are recorded in the statement of financial position at fair
value. Changes in fair value are recognized in ‘Other operating income’. Interest and dividend income or expense
is recorded in ‘Other operating income’ according to the terms of the contract, or when the right to the payment
has been established.

Il) Financial assets and financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss

The financial assets or financial liabilities classified under this category are measured at fair value and changes,
if any, on subsequent measurement are recognized in the income statement.

Ill) Financial instruments at amortized cost

Such financial investments are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate (EIR),
less impairment. The amortization is included in ‘Interest income’ in the income statement. The losses arising
from impairment of such investments are recognized in the income statement line ‘Impairment for loans and
other losses’.

Prepaid Benefits: When the transaction price differs from the fair value of other observable current market
transactions in the same instrument, the Bank immediately recognizes the difference between the transaction
price and fair value as Prepaid Benefit. Bank estimates the Prepaid Benefit in relation to Staff Loans. While
calculating the fair value in case of Staff Loans, the average base rate for past 13 months of the Bank has been
considered to be the market rate for the loan. Further, the amortization income and expense of such prepaid
benefit is shown both under Interest Income as well as Personnel expense as it is the notional income and
expense for the Bank.

IV) Financial investments at fair value through other comprehensive income.
After initial measurement, such financial investments are subsequently measured at fair value.

Unrealized gains and losses are recognized directly in equity in the ‘Fair Value Reserve’. Amounts recorded
in other comprehensive income are not subsequently transferred to profit or loss. Where the Bank holds multiple
units of the same security, they are deemed to be disposed of on a first-in first-out basis. Dividends earned
whilst holding such financial investments are recognised in the income statement unless the dividend clearly
represents a recovery of part of the cost of the investment.

(d) De-recognition of financial assets and financial liabilities
Financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is
de-recognized when:

- The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired.

- The Bank has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either:
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- The Bank has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or

- The Bank has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred
control of the asset.

When the Bank has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, and has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor
transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognised to the extent of the Bank’s continuing involvement in the
asset. In that case, the Bank also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability
are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Bank has retained. Continuing involvement
that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount
of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Bank could be required to repay.

Financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.
Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or
the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a
derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference between the carrying value
of the original financial liability and the consideration paid is recognised in profit or loss.

(e) Determination of fair value

‘Fair value’ is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability (exit price) in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value for financial instruments traded
in active markets at the statement of financial position date is based on their quoted market price. In case of all
other financial instruments not traded in an active market, the Bank recognizes such unquoted equity instruments
at their cost price.

(f) Impairment

Loans & Advances: The Bank recognises impairment on loans and advances as the higher of the amount computed
as per the norms prescribed by the Regulator and amount determined as per paragraph 63 of NAS -39.

Under the norms prescribed by the Regulator, impairment is provisioned from 0.25% to 100% of the outstanding
balance depending on the categorization of the individual loans & advances. For assessment of impairment under
NAS 39, the Bank reviews its individually significant loans and advances at each statement of financial position date
against pre-determined criteria to assess whether an impairment loss should be recorded in the income statement.
The Bank has set the criteria of Significance for Individual Impairment as follows:

1. Top 50 Customers based on the amortized cost, outstanding as at year end date
2. The loans those are overdue for more than 180 days as at year end date.

In particular, management judgment is required in the estimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows
when determining the impairment loss. These estimates are based on assumptions about a number of factors and
actual results may differ, resulting in future changes to the allowance. All individually not significant loans and
advances and those significant loans & advances not individually impaired are assessed collectively, in groups of
assets with similar product nature (viz. Home Loan, Hire Purchase Loan, Short Term Loan, Term Loan and Personal
Loan), to determine whether impairment need to be recognized due to incurred loss events for which there is
objective evidence but whose effects are not yet evident. The collective assessment takes account of data from the
loan portfolio (such as levels of arrears, credit utilization, loan to collateral ratios, etc.), and judgments to the effect
of concentrations of risks and economic data (including levels of unemployment, real estate prices indices, country
risk and the performance of different individual groups).

Financial investments at FVOCI: For these financial investments, the Bank assesses at each reporting date whether
there is objective evidence that an investment is impaired. The Bank assesses individually whether there is objective
evidence of impairment based on the same criteria as financial assets carried at amortised cost.

In the case of equity investments, objective evidence would also include a ‘significant’ or ‘prolonged’ decline in the
fair value of the investment below its cost. Where there is evidence of impairment, the cumulative loss measured
as the difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that investment
previously recognised in the income statement — is removed from equity and recognised in the income statement.
Impairment losses on equity investments are not reversed through the income statement; increases in the fair value
after impairment are recognised in other comprehensive income.
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3.5 Trading Assets

Trading assets are those assets that the Bank acquires principally for the purpose of selling in the near term, or holds
as part of a portfolio that is managed together for short-term profit. The other trading asset includes non derivative
financial assets. It includes Government bonds, NRB Bonds, Domestic Corporate bonds, Treasury bills, Equities etc
held primarily for the trading purpose.

3.6 Derivative assets and derivative liabilities

Derivatives are financial instruments that derive their value in response to changes in interest rates, financial instrument
prices, foreign exchange rates. Derivatives are categorized as trading unless they are designated as hedging instruments.

Derivative instruments-both assets as well as liabilities; like interest rate swap, currency swap, forward foreign exchange
contract etc. held for trading as well as risk management purposes are presented under this head.

3.7 Property and Equipment
(a) Recognition and measurement

Property & Equipment are recognized if it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the asset will
flow to the entity and the cost of the asset can be measured reliably in accordance with NAS 16 on Property, Plant
& Equipment. Initially property and equipment are measured at cost.

(b) Cost Model

Property and equipment (including equipment under operating leases where the Bank is the lessor) is stated at cost
excluding the costs of day-to—day servicing, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment in value.
Changes in the expected useful life are accounted for by changing the amortisation period or method, as appropriate,
and treated as changes in accounting estimates.

(c) Subsequent Cost

These are costs that are recognised in the carrying amount of an item, if it is probable that the future economic
benefits embodied within that part will flow to the entity and it can be reliably measured.

(d) Depreciation

Depreciation is calculated using the diminishing balance method to write down thecost of property and equipment
using the rates stipulated as follows. Land is not depreciated.

- Buildings 5%

- Computer Hardware 20%
- Machinery and Equipment 15%
- Motor Vehicle 15%
- Furniture and Fittings- Wood 15%
- Furniture and Fittings- Metal 10%

(e) De-recognition

Property and equipment is derecognised on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its
use. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is recognised in ‘Other operating income’ in the income statement
in the year the asset is derecognised.

3.8 Goodwill /Intangible assets

The Bank’s intangible assets include the value of computer software. An intangible asset is recognised only when its
cost can be measured reliably and it is probable that the expected future economic benefits that are attributable to it
will flow to the Bank. Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of
intangible assets acquired in a business combination is their fair value as at the date of acquisition. Following initial
recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment
losses.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are
amortised over the useful economic life. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset
with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year-end. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected
pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are accounted for by changing the amortisation
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period or method, as appropriate, and treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on
intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the income statement in the expense category consistent with the
function of the intangible asset.

Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line method to write down the cost of intangible assets to their residual
values over their estimated useful lives. Computer software is amortised equally over the estimated useful life of five
years.

3.9 Investment Property

“Investment Property” is shown as a separate line item in the face of Statement of Financial Position as these assets
are assets of the bank from the date of repossession and are intended to sale from the legal process in due course of
time. They are recognized at fair value in the books. Non-banking assets taken over at the lower of fair value (Panchakrit
Mulya) or total amount due from the borrower as per guidelines issued by the Regulator is continued to be shown at
the recorded value till the same is disposed.

3.10 Income Tax
(a) Current tax

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior years are measured at the amount expected to be recovered
from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are
enacted or substantively enacted as at the reporting date.

(b) Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences at the statement of financial position date between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes. Deferred tax liabilities are
recognised for all taxable temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, carry forward of unused tax credits and
unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each statement of financial position date and reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at each statement of financial
position date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profit will allow the
deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences, except:

- Where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or of an asset or liability in a transaction
that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss

- Inrespect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, where the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the
asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the statement of financial position date.

Current tax and deferred tax relating to items recognised directly in equity are also recognised in equity and not in
the income statement.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation
authority.

3.11 Deposits, debt securities issued and subordinated liabilities

Financial instruments issued by the Bank, that are not designated at fair value through profit or loss, are classified as
liabilities under Deposits from Customers, Due to Bank and Financial Institutions, Borrowings, and other Liabilities where
the substance of the contractual arrangement results in the Bank having an obligation either to deliver cash or another
financial asset to the holder, or to satisfy the obligation other than by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another
financial asset for a fixed number of own equity shares.
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3.12 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Bank has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event and
it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. The expense relating to any provision is presented in
the income statement net of any reimbursement. Where the effect of the time value of money is material, the amount
of a provision is determined by discounting the anticipated future cash flows expected to be required to settle the
obligation at a pre-tax rate that reflects the risks specific to the liability.

Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

3.13 Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Bank and the revenue can
be reliably measured. The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognised.

(a) Interest income

For all financial instruments measured at amortized cost and financial instruments designated at fair value through
profit or loss, interest income or expense is recorded using the EIR, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where
appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability. The calculation takes into account
all contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment options) and includes any fees or
incremental costs that are directly attributable to the instrument and are an integral part of the EIR, but not future
credit losses.

The carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability is adjusted if the Bank revises its estimates of payments
or receipts. The adjusted carrying amount is calculated based on the original EIR and the change incarrying amount
is recorded as 'Other operating income’. However, for a reclassified financial asset for which the Bank subsequently
increases its estimates of future cash receipts as a result of increased recoverability of those cash receipts, the
effect of that increase is recognized as an adjustment to the EIR from the date of the change in estimate.

Once the recorded value of a financial asset or a group of similar financial assets has been reduced due to an
impairment loss, interest income continues to be recognized using the rate of interest used to discount the future
cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss.

(b) Fee and commission income

The Bank earns fee and commission income from a diverse range of services it provides to its customers. Fee
income can be divided into the following two categories:

- Fee income earned for services that are provided within the reporting period.
- Fees earned for provision of services over a period of time and accrue over that period.

In case of the first category of fees & commission earned, the Bank recognises the income at the time of receipt
itself whereas in case of the later category, the commission is deferred over the period of service. However, if the
transaction fees are not material, the Bank recognises such fees in income immediately.

Loan commitment fees for loans that are likely to be drawn down and other credit related fees are deferred (together
with any incremental costs) and recognised as an adjustment to the EIR on the loan. When it is unlikely that a loan
will be drawn down, the loan commitment fees are recognised over the commitment period on a straight-line basis.
However, such amount collectively tantamount to less than 1% of the total gross loan portfolio of the bank and the
cost of extraction tend to exceed the benefit from its use; hence on materiality ground, such costs is not considered
in the measurement of effective interest rate and accordingly, the coupon rate embedded in the instrument has
been considered to be the Effective Interest Rate for the instrument.

(c) Dividend income

Dividend income is recognized at an amount net of applicable final withholding tax when the Bank’s right to receive
the payment is established.

(d) Net Trading Income

Net trading income includes gains and (losses) from changes in fair value, related capital gains/ losses, foreign
exchange trading gains/ (losses), interest income from trading assets and dividend from trading assets
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(e) Net Income from other financial instrument at fair value through Profit or Loss

The bank has not designated any investments as financial instrument at fair value through Profit or Loss, income
also has not been recognized under this head.

3.14 Interest Expense

The Bank recognizes the interest expenses on financial liabilities. The interest expenses are recognized on accrual basis
using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. EIR is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or
receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset or financial liability.

Interest expenses include interest on deposits from customers, deposits from banks, debt securities issued, and other
interest bearing financial liabilities.

3.15 Employee Benefits
(a) Defined Benefit Plan- Gratuity

Based on the Nepal Accounting Standard NAS19- Employee Benefits, the Bank has adopted the actuarial valuation
method for employee benefit liability. Actuarial valuation is carried out every year to ascertain the liability under
gratuity.

The liability recognized in the statement of financial position in respect of defined benefit plan is the present value
of the defined benefit obligation at the date of the statement of financial position less the fair value of plan assets,
together with adjustments for unrecognized actuarial gains or losses and past service costs. The defined benefit
obligation is calculated annually by independent actuaries using the projected unit credit method. The present value
of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows using interest rates
of high-quality corporate bonds that are denominated in the currency in which the benefits will be paid, and that
have terms to maturity approximating the terms of the related liability. The defined benefit plan liability is discounted
using rates equivalent to the market yields at the date of statement of financial position that are denominated in
the currency in which benefits will be paid, and that have a maturity approximating to the terms of the related pension
liability.

Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are charged
or credited to other comprehensive income. Interest cost, present service cost and past-service costs are recognized
in statement of profit or loss.

The principal assumptions, which have the most significant effects on the valuation, are the rate of discount, rate
of salary revision, rate of turnover at the selected age groups, rate of disability, death benefits and expenses.

(b) Long Term Paid Absences

Liability towards long term paid absences, accumulated and payable under Staff Service Bye-Laws, has been
assessed using actuarial valuation method and Current service cost, Interest Cost as well as the actuarial gain/(loss)
has been charged to Income Statement.

(c) Defined Contribution Plan - Employees’ Provident Fund

Employees are eligible for Employees’ Provident Fund Contributions in line with the respective Statutes and
Regulations. The Bank contributes at 10% with equal contribution from the employees.

3.16 Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is a lease, or it contains a lease, is based on the substance of the
arrangement and requires an assessment of whether the fulfillment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a
specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset.

Operating Leases

Bank as a lessor: Leases where the Bank does not transfer substantially all the risk and benefits of ownership of the
asset are classified as operating leases. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating operating leases are added to the
carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent
rents are recognized as revenue in the period in which they are earned.

Bank as a lessee: Under NAS 17, lease payments under an operating lease shall be recognized as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease termunless another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern of the
user’s benefit. Further to this, under carve-out given by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal, lease payments
under an operating lease shall be recognized as an expense on straight line basis over the lease term unless the
payments to the lessor are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate for the lessor’s
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expected inflationary cost increases. In case of lease agreements entered into by the Bank, pre-determined percentage
increment in lease payments is made to compensate for the general inflation rate and hence, all lease expense has
been recognized based on the actual payment basis.

Finance Leases

Assets leased to customers which transfer substantially all the risks and rewards associated with ownership other than
legal title, are classified as ‘Finance Leases’. Amounts receivable under finance leases are included under ‘Loans and
Receivables to Customers’ in the Statement of Financial Position after deduction of initial rentals received, unearned
lease income and the accumulated impairment losses. When assets are held subject to a finance lease, the present
value of the lease payments, discounted at the rate of interest implicit in the lease, is recognised as a receivable. The
difference between the total payments receivable under the lease and the present value of the receivable is recognised
as unearned finance income, which is allocated to accounting periods reflect a constant periodic rate of return.

3.17 Foreign currency translation

All foreign currency transactions are converted to Nepalese Rupees (NPR) which is Bank’s functional & reporting
currency, at the rates of exchange prevailing at the time the transactions are affected.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the close of the year are translated to Nepalese
Rupees using the spot foreign exchange rate as on that date and differences are taken to ‘Other operating income’ in
the Income Statement, being of non-trading nature. Non-monetary items in a foreign currency that are measured in
terms of historical cost are translated using the exchange rates as at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary
items in foreign currency measured at fair value are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value
is determined.

Foreign exchange differences arising on the settlement or reporting of monetary items at rates different from those which
were initially recorded are dealt with in the Income Statement.

3.18 Financial Guarantee and Loan Commitment

The Bank may give financial guarantees in the ordinary course of business. The guarantees are initially recognised in
the financial statements (within ‘other liabilities’) at fair value. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Bank’s liability under
each guarantee is measured at the higher of the amount initially recognised less, when appropriate, cumulative
amortization recognised in the income statement, and the best estimate of expenditure required to settle any financial
obligation arising as a result of the guarantee. Any increase in the liability relating to financial guarantees is recorded
in the income statement as expense. The premium received is recognised in the income statement in ‘on a straight-
line basis over the life of the guarantee.

3.19 Share Capital and Reserves

Increment in Share Capital results with the issue of Right Share, Further Public Offers and Bonus Share. However,
proposed bonus shares are not shown as increment to share capital until approved by annual general meeting.

Dividends on ordinary shares

Dividends on ordinary shares are recognized as a liability and deducted from equity when they are approved by the
Bank’s shareholders. Interim dividends are deducted from equity when they are declared and no longer at the discretion
of the Bank. Dividends for the year that are approved after the statement of financial position date are disclosed as an
event after the reporting date.

Statutory Reserves:

Statutory reserves represent the mandatory reserves maintained by the Bank as required by the Regulator or under
other applicable laws & regulations and are not available for distribution as dividend to the shareholders. This includes
general reserve, exchange fluctuation reserve, capital redemption reserve, interest capitalization reserves, corporate
social responsibility reserve, employee training reserve and other reserves as may be notified from time to time.

Equity reserves
The reserves recorded in equity (other comprehensive income) on the Bank’s statement of financial position include:

- ‘Fair Value Reserve’which comprise changes in fair value of investments, net of deferred tax, recognized through
Other Comprehensive Income.

- Reserve for ‘Actuarial Gains/Losses of Defined Benefit plans’ on Actuarial Gain/ (Loss), as required by NAS 19-
Employee Benefits.
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Regulatory Reserve

The Regulatory Reserve is mandated under directives issued by the Regulator for adjustment of specified differences
on account of first time adoption of NFRS in order to ensure a fair representation of financial statements. The Reserve
is required to be created by adjustment to Retained Earnings. The amount in Regulatory Reserve is not allowed to be
considered for Capital Adequacy purposes.

Retained Earnings
Retained earnings represents the cumulative net earnings or profit available for distribution after accounting for dividends
and all mandatory reserves.
3.20 Earnings per share including diluted
The bank presents basic and diluted Earnings per Share (EPS) for its ordinary shares.

Basic earnings per share (EPS) is calculated by dividing the net profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity-holders
of Bank by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted Earnings per Share is determined by adjusting both the profit attributable to the ordinary equity holders and
the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding, for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares if
any.

There have been no transactions involving ordinary shares or potential ordinary shares between the reporting date and
the date of the completion of these financial statements which would require the restatement of EPS.

3.21 Segment reporting

A segment is a distinguishable component of the Bank that is engaged in providing services (Business Segments) or
in providing services within a particular economic environment (Geographical Segment) which is subject to risks and
rewards that are different from those of other segments.

In accordance with the Nepal Financial Reporting Standards NFRS 8 on ‘Segmental Reporting’, segmental information
is presented in respect of the Bank based on Bank management and internal reporting structure.

The Bank’s segmental reporting is based on the geographical operating segments.

Management monitors the operating results of its business units separately for the purpose of making decisions about
resource allocation and performance assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based on operating profit or loss
of respective segment.

3.22 Investment in Associates

The Bank’s investment in its associates, entities in which the Bank has significant influence, shall be accounted for using
the equity method. Under the equity method, the investment in the associate is initially recognized at cost. The carrying
amount of the investment is adjusted to recognize changes in the Bank’s share of net assets of the associate since the
acquisition date.

Due to the fact that the associates are yet to adopt NFRS in preparing their financial statements, the investment in
associates has been accounted for at cost and the same has been approved as carve-out by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Nepal.
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Particulars

Asar 2075

Asar 2074

Shrawan 1, 2073
(Restated)

Cash in Hand
Balance with B/Fls

1,716,614,874
1,924,653,557

1,558,322,040
1,215,911,701

1,498,347,320
698,934,429

Money at Call and Short Notice 500,039,726 - 1,482,160,434
Other 600,051,226 1,960,110,403 3,530,248,980
Total 4,741,359,383 4,734,344,144 7,209,691,163

Note: Others Include Financial Assets with original maturity of 3 months or less and Cheque in transit.

4.2 Due from Nepal Rastra Bank

Particulars

Asar 2075

Asar 2074

Shrawan 1, 2073
(Restated)

Statutory balances with NRB
Securities purchased under resale agreement
Other deposit and receivable from NRB

3,776,355,800

1,382,903,937

3,481,639,700

2,659,512,217

4,468,174,000

1,209,528,310

Total

5,159,259,737

6,141,151,917

5,677,702,310

4.3 Placements with Bank and Financial Instituitions

Placement with foreign B/Fls
Less:Allowance for Impairment

4,989,524,816

Particulars Asar 2075 Asar 2074 Shrawan 1, 2073
(Restated)
Placement with domestic B/Fls - - 52,500,079

6,272,030,993

4,571,310,876

Total 4,989,524,816 6,272,030,993 4,623,810,955
4.4 Derivative financial instruments
Particulars Asar 2075 Asar 2074 Shrawan 1, 2073
(Restated)
Held for trading
Interest rate swap - - -
Currency swap - - -
Forward exchange contract 33,444,999 36,970,400 13,956,800
Others
Held for risk management
Interest rate swap = - -
Currency swap - - -
Forward exchange contract - 5,271,779 11,611,491
Other - - -
Total 33,444,999 42,242,179 25,568,291
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4.5 Other trading assets

Particulars Asar 2075 Asar 2074 Shrawan 1, 2073
(Restated)

Teasury bills = - -
Government bonds = - -
NRB Bonds = - -
Domestic Corporate bonds = - -
Equities . - -
Other - - -
Total - - -

Pledged
Non-pledged

4.6 Loan and advances to B/Fls

Particulars Asar 2075 Asar 2074 Shrawan 1, 2073
(Restated)
Loans to microfinance institutions 3,722,373,307 3,359,996,246 2,708,913,858
Other - - -
Less: Allowances for impairment (37,154,322) (33,570,260) (27,049,124)
Total 3,685,218,985 3,326,425,986 2,681,864,734

Loan and advances to B/Fls have been measured at amortized cost. The detail break-up of the same has been provided below:

Loans and advances (Principal) 3,715,432,214 3,357,025,958 2,704,912,377
Add: Accrued Interest 6,941,093 2,970,288 4,001,481
Total Amortized Cost 3,722,373,307 3,359,996,246 2,708,913,858

4.6.1: Allowances for impairment

Particulars Asar 2075 Asar 2074 Shrawan 1, 2073
(Restated)

Balance at Shrawan 1 (33,570,260) (27,049,124) -
Impairment loss for the year:

Charge for the year (32,746,734) (26,397,672) -
Recoveries/(reversal) 29,162,672 19,876,536 -
Amount written off - - -
Balance at Asar end (37,154,322) (33,570,260) (27,049,124)

Impairment provided is the amount of Loan Loss Provision (higher of amount derived based on LLP norms as prescribed by the
regulator and the amount of impairment calculated based on NAS 39) as mandated by the Carve-out provided by ICAN.

Based on NAS 39, Loans and advances to banks and financial institutions are individulally tested for impairment. No any specific
impairment has arisen for the year and the previous years. Further, there is no figure for collective impairment for loans and advances
to BFls as no historical loss ratio exists for such loans and advances.
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4.7 Loans and advances to customers

Particulars Asar 2075 Asar 2074 Shrawan 1, 2073
(Restated)

Loan and advances measured at amortized cost 84,364,473,983 75,684,957,057 67,597,249,527
Less: Impairment allowances

Collective impairment (917,968,864) (795,518,918) (608,620,378)

Individual impairment (971,511,439) (417,628,412) (719,240,894)

Net amount 82,474,993,680 74,471,809,727 66,269,388,255

Loan and advances measured at FVTPL - - -

Total 82,474,993,680 74,471,809,727 66,269,388,255

4.7.1: Analysis of loan and advances - By Product

Particulars Asar 2075 Asar 2074 Shrawan 1, 2073
(Restated)

Product
Term loans 14,262,979,714 12,790,784,076 8,648,967,731
Overdraft 8,407,923,810 9,884,830,120 8,685,711,591
Trust receipt/Import loans 14,143,814,267 7,894,805,776 7,426,765,286
Demand and other working capital loans 26,522,607,304 20,851,058,173 21,799,773,530
Personal residential loans 4,494,038,687 4,639,628,210 4,497,754,342
Real estate loans 3,807,106,896 3,481,717,112 3,438,432,614
Margin lending loans 1,344,048,443 2,465,736,700 1,978,489,769
Hire purchase loans 6,506,662,052 6,743,752,750 5,142,331,573
Deprived sector loans 425,738,869 406,881,241 412,111,530
Bills purchased 66,073,499 2,257,533,712 2,232,223,500
Staff loans 558,880,033 804,851,592 751,323,797
Other 3,150,220,358 2,867,222,988 2,133,415,499
Sub total 83,690,093,933 75,088,802,451 67,147,300,761
Interest receivable 674,380,050 596,154,606 449,948,766
Grand total 84,364,473,983 75,684,957,057 67,597,249,527

Note: Fair Value of Staff Loan has reduced significantly during the year 2075 due to migration of the home loan to “Life Insurance
Tagged Home Loan”. The major portion of such loan comes under Prepaid Employee Benefit as the receivable amount of such loan
is realizable after long period of time and the present value of the staff loan (fair value portion) becomes smaller.

4.7.2: Analysis of loan and advances - By Currency

Particulars Asar 2075 Asar 2074 Shrawan 1, 2073
(Restated)

Nepalese rupee 78,276,113,108 73,077,952,628 64,843,882,103
Indian rupee 29,468,151 13,144,394 6,130,784
United State dollar 6,050,159,555 2,579,856,695 2,680,688,602
Great Britain pound 8,716,604 - -
Euro - 13,987,260 66,531,532
Japenese yen - - -
Chinese yuan = - -
Other 16,566 16,080 16,506
Total 84,364,473,983 75,684,957,057 67,597,249,527
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4.7.3: Analysis of loan and advances - By Collateral

Particulars Asar 2075 Asar 2074 Shrawan 1, 2073
(Restated)
Secured
Movable/immovable assets 81,916,000,431 69,643,324,319 62,437,085,349
Gold and silver - - -
Guarantee of domestic B/Fls - - -
Government guarantee - - -
Guarantee of international rated bank 38,670,059 104,883,072 64,942,852
Collateral of export document 237,421 52,020,170 105,989,167
Collateral of fixed deposit receipt 668,632,851 776,664,283 327,120,964
Collateral of Governement securities - - -
Counter guarantee 269,536,626 333,851,475 445,607,617
Personal guarantee 6,104,348 32,692,276 32,799,896
Other collateral 1,465,292,248 4,741,521,463 4,183,703,681
Sub total 84,364,473,983 75,684,957,057 67,597,249,527
Unsecured - - -
Grand total 84,364,473,983 75,684,957,057 67,597,249,527
4.7.4: Allowances for impairment
Particulars Asar 2075 Asar 2074 Shrawan 1, 2073
(Restated)
Specific allowances for impairment
Balance at Shrawan 1 417,628,412 719,240,894
Impairment loss for the year:
Charge for the year 797,483,701 707,845,830
Recoveries/(reversal) during the year (243,600,674) (1,009,458,312)
Write-offs - -
Exchange rate variance on foreign currency impairment - -
Other movement - -
Balance at Asar end 971,511,439 417,628,412 719,240,894
Collective allowances for impairment
Balance at Shrawan 1 795,518,918 608,620,378
Impairment loss for the year: - -
Charge/(reversal) for the year 122,449,946 186,898,540
Exchange rate variance on foreign currency impairment - -
Other movement - -
Balance at Asar end - -
Total allowances for impairment 917,968,864 795,518,918 608,620,378

Impairment provided is the amount of Loan Loss Provision (higher of amount derived based on LLP norms as prescribed by the
regulator and the amount of impairment calculated based on NAS 39) as mandated by the Carve-out provided by ICAN.
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Impairment under NFRS
Allowances for impairment based on NAS 39

Particulars Asar 2075 Asar 2074 Shrawan 1, 2073
(Restated)

Specific allowances for impairment
Balance at Shrawan 1 396,766,582 398,872,960
Impairment loss for the year:

Charge for the year 193,334,278 (2,106,378)

Recoveries/(reversal) during the year - -
Write-offs - -

Exchange rate variance on foreign currency impairment - -
Other movement - -

Balance at Asar end 590,100,860 396,766,582 398,872,960
Collective allowances for impairment
Balance at Shrawan 1 204,617,011 86,960,795
Impairment loss for the year:
Charge/(reversal) for the year (59,354,465) 117,656,217

Exchange rate variance on foreign currency impairment - -
Other movement - -

Balance at Asar end - -

Total allowances for impairment 145,262,546 204,617,011 86,960,795

Impairment here has been calculated using Incurred Loss Model under NAS 39.

4.8 Investment securities

Particulars Asar 2075 Asar 2074 Shrawan 1, 2073

(Restated)
Investment securities measured at amortized cost 11,579,736,432 9,570,845,506 11,080,943,232
Investment in equity measured at FVTOCI 74,435,378 77,951,175 110,013,839
Total 11,654,171,810 9,648,796,681 11,190,957,071

4.8.1: Investment securities measured at amortized cost

Particulars Asar 2075 Asar 2074 Shrawan 1, 2073
(Restated)

Debt securities 1,278,304,716 1,568,466,204 1,633,256,610
Government bonds s - -
Government treasury bills 5,372,251,441 3,792,959,253 5,297,402,451
Nepal Rastra Bank bonds 4,929,180,275 4,209,420,049 4,150,284,171
Nepal Rastra Bank deposits instruments - - -
Other - - -
Less: specific allowances for impairment - - -
Total 11,579,736,432 9,570,845,506 11,080,943,232
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4.8.2: Investment in equity measured at fair value through other comprehensive income

Particulars Asar 2075 Asar 2074 Shrawan 1, 2073
(Restated)
Equity instruments
Quoted equity securities 68,097,219 71,613,016 108,675,680
Unquoted equity securities 6,338,159 6,338,159 6,338,159
Total 74,435,378 77,951,175 110,013,839

4.8.3: Information relating to investment in equities

Particulars Asar 2075 Asar 2074 Shrawan 1, 2073
(Restated)
Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value

Investment in quoted equity

Grameen Bikas Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd.| 3,000,000 | 58,845,548 | 3,000,000 | 71,613,016 | 3,000,000 | 103,675,680
95,996 shares of Rs. 100 each

Siddhartha Equity Fund 9,677,480 | 9,251,671 - - - -
967,748 shares of Rs. 100 each

VISA Card International - = - - - R
5,860 Common Stock of C Class

Mastercard Worldwide - = - - - R
7,320 Common Stock of B Class

Investment in unquoted equity

Swift SC 1,214,859 - | 1,214,859 - 1,214,859 -
6 shares
Credit Information Center Limited 1,423,300 - | 1,423,300 - | 1,423,300 -

88,434 shares of Rs.100 each

Nepal Clearing House Limited 2,500,000 - | 2,500,000 - | 2,500,000 -
30,000 shares of Rs. 100 each

National Banking Institute Limited 1,200,000 - 1,200,000 - | 1,200,000 -
12,000 shares of Rs. 100 each

Total 6,338,159 | 68,097,219 | 6,338,159 | 71,613,016 | 6,338,159 | 103,675,680

The Bank possess 5,860 Class C shares of VISA Card International and 7,320 Class B shares of Master Card International, which
has not been recognized in the books as the shares do not have any carrying cost. Also, the shares are not tradable & hence the
fair value of such shares are not available to account for them at fair value.
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Particulars Asar 2075 Asar 2074 Shrawan 1, 2073
(Restated)
Current tax assets
Current year income tax assets 5,301,354,696 4,297,548,385 3,394,413,384
Tax assets of prior periods 2,571,952 1,469,670 9,707,048

5,303,926,648

4,299,018,056

3,404,120,432

Current tax liabilities
Current year income tax liabilities

5,147,047,090

4,269,434,698

3,323,095,798

Tax liabilities of prior periods 2,571,952 1,469,670 9,707,048
5,149,619,042 4,270,904,368 3,332,802,846
Total 154,307,606 28,113,687 71,317,586
4.10 Investment in subsidiaries
Particulars Asar 2075 Asar 2074 Shrawan 1, 2073
(Restated)
Investment in quoted subsidiaries - -
Investment in unquoted subsidiaries - -
Total investment - -
Less: Impairment allowances = -
Net carrying amount - -
4.10.1: Investment in quoted subsidiaries
Particulars Asar 2075 Asar 2074 Shrawan 1, 2073
(Restated)
Cost [Fair Value| Cost |Fair Value| Cost Fair Value
........................................... Ltd. - - - - - -
............ shares of Rs. ........... each
........................................... Ltd. - - - - - -
............ shares of Rs. ........... each

4.10.2: Investment in unquoted subsidiaries

Particulars Asar 2075 Asar 2074 Shrawan 1, 2073
(Restated)
Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value| Cost Fair Value
........................................... Ltd. - - - - - -
............ shares of Rs. ........... each
........................................... Ltd. - - - - - -
............ shares of Rs. ........... each
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4.10.3: Information relating to subsidiaries of the Bank

Particulars Asar 2075 Asar 2074 Shrawan 1, 2073
(Restated)
.............................................................. Ltd. -
.............................................................. Ltd. -
.............................................................. Ltd. -
.............................................................. Ltd. -
4.10.4: Non controlling interest of the subsidiaries
Particulars Asar 2075 Asar 2074 Shrawan 1, 2073
(Restated)
Equity interest held by NCI (%) -
Profit/(loss) allocated during the year -
Accumulated balances of NCl as on Asar end........ -
Dividend paid to NCI =
Equity interest held by NCI (%) :
Profit/(loss) allocated during the year _
Accumulated balances of NCI as on Asar end........ B
Dividend paid to NCI :
4.11 Investment in associates
Particulars Asar 2075 Asar 2074 Shrawan 1, 2073
(Restated)
Investment in quoted associates 97,661,700 97,661,700 97,661,700
Investment in unquoted associates 98,124,000 98,124,000 98,124,000
Total investment 195,785,700 195,785,700 195,785,700
Less: Impairment allowances - -
Net carrying amount 195,785,700 195,785,700 195,785,700
4.11.1: Investment in quoted associates
Particulars Asar 2075 Asar 2074 Shrawan 1, 2073
(Restated)
Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value
Rural Microfinance Dev Centre 48,000,000 - 48,000,000 48,000,000 -
670,824 shares of Rs. 100 each
Nirdhan Utthan Bank Ltd. 12,793,300 - 12,793,300 12,793,300 -
1,122,325 shares of Rs.100 each
Chhimek Bikas Bank Ltd. 24,377,900 - 24,377,900 24,377,900 -
1,198,300 shares of Rs. 100 each
Swabalamban Bikas Bank Ltd. 12,490,500 - 12,490,500 12,490,500 -
604,828 shares of Rs. 100 each
Total 97,661,700 - 97,661,700 97,661,700 -
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Particulars Asar 2075 Asar 2074 Shrawan 1, 2073
(Restated)
Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value
Smart Choice Technologies Limited 98,124,000 - 98,124,000 - 98,124,000 -
230,880 shares of Rs. 100 each
Total 98,124,000 - 98,124,000 - 98,124,000 -

Investments in associates are required to be accounted using equity method in line with NAS 28. However bank account has
accounted for investments in associates at cost, at the date of transition, as the associate companies are yet to adopt NFRS in
preparing their financial statements.This also has been ratified in the Carve-Out provided by ICAN.

4.11.3: Information relating to associates of the Bank

Percentage of ownership held by the Bank
Particulars Asar 2075 Asar 2074 Shrawan 1, 2073
(Restated)

Rural Microfinance Dev Centre 9.23% 9.23% 9.23%
Nirdhan Utthan Bank Ltd. 11.22% 11.22% 11.22%
Chhimek Bikas Bank Ltd. 11.98% 11.98% 11.98%
Swabalamban Bikas Bank Ltd. 12.02% 12.02% 12.02%
Smart Choice Technologies Limited 20.00% 20.00% 20.00%

Although holding of bank in Rural Microfinance Dev Centre, Nirdhan Utthan Bank Ltd, Chimmek Bikas Bank Ltd and Swabalamban
Bikas Bank Ltd is less than 20%, they are considered to be associate of the Bank by the virtue of Significant Influence. Representation
of the Bank in the board of directors of these entities demonstrates the existence of significant influence.

4.11.4: Equity value of associates

Particulars

Asar 2075

Asar 2074

Shrawan 1, 2073
(Restated)

4.12 Investment properties

Particulars

Asar 2075

Asar 2074

Shrawan 1, 2073
(Restated)

Investment properties measured at fair value
Balance as on Shrawan 1, 2074
Addition/disposal during the year

Net changes in fair value during the year
Adjustment/transfer

233,378,063
(231,078,756)

216,578,063
16,800,000

216,578,063

Net amount

2,299,307

233,378,063

216,578,063

Investment properties measured at cost
Balance as on Shrawan 1, ........
Addition/disposal during the year
Adjustment/transfer

Accumulated depreciation

Accumulated impairment loss

Net amount

Total

2,299,307

233,378,063

216,578,063
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4.14 Goodwill and Intangible Assets

Software
Particulars Goodwill Other | Total Asar end
Purchased Developed

Cost:
As on Shrawan 1, 2073 - 528,971,992 - 528,971,992
Addition during the Year -

Acquisition - 23,236,529 - 23,236,529

Capitalization - - - -
Disposal during the year - - - -
Adjustment/Revaluation - - - -
Balance as on Asar end 2074 - 552,208,521 - 552,208,521
Addition during the Year -

Acquisition - 45,310,356 - 45,310,356

Capitalization - - - ;
Disposal during the year - - - -
Adjustment/Revaluation - - - -
Balance as on Asar end 2075 - 597,518,877 - 597,518,877
Amortization and Impairment
As on Shrawan 1, 2073 - 420,277,335 - 420,277,335
Amortization charge for the Year - 55,905,378 - 55,905,378
Impairment for the year - - - -
Disposals - - - -
Adjustment -
Balance as on Asar end 2074 - 476,182,713 - 476,182,713
Amortization charge for the Year - 35,483,476 - 35,483,476
Impairment for the year - - - -
Disposals - - - -
Adjustment - - - -
Balance as on Asar end 2075 - 511,666,189 - 511,666,189
Net book value:
Balance as on Asar end 2073 - 108,694,657 - 108,694,657
Balance as on Asar end 2074 - 76,025,808 - 76,025,808
Balance as on Asar end 2075 - 85,852,688 - 85,852,688
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4.15 Deffered Tax

Asar 2075

Particulars

Deferred Tax

Deferred Tax

Net Deferred Tax

Assets Liabilities Assets/(Liabilities)
Deferred tax on temporory differences on following items
Loan and Advance to B/Fls - (891,086) (891,086)
Loans and advances to customers - | (178,846,382) (178,846,382)
Investment properties - - -
Investment securities 310,944 (16,625,922) (16,314,978)
Property & equipment - (8,809,758) (8,809,758)
Employees’ defined benefit plan 73,598,171 - 73,598,171
Lease liabilities - - -
Provisions - - -
Other temporory differences - - -
Deferred tax on temporory differences 73,909,115 (205,173,148) (131,264,033)
Deferred tax on carry forward of unused tax losses ) . )
Deferred tax due to changes in tax rate ) ) )
Net Deferred tax asset/(liabilities) as on year end of Asar 2075 (131,264,033)
Deferred tax (asset)/liabilities as on shrawan 1, 2074 128,265,472
Origination/(Reversal) during the year 7,998,561
Deferred tax expense/(income) recognised in profit or loss 11,956,544
Deferred tax expense/(income) recognised in other (3,957,983)
comprehensive income
Deferred tax expense/(income) recognised in directly in equity -
Asar 2074
Deferred tax on temporory differences on following items
Loan and Advance to B/Fls - (891,086) (891,086)
Loans and advances to customers - (178,846,382) (178,846,382)
Investment properties - - -
Investment securities 389,437 (20,583,905) (20,194,468)
Property & equipment - (7,434,203) (7,434,203)
Employees’ defined benefit plan 77,266,298 - 77,266,298
Lease liabilities - - -
Provisions - - -
Other temporory differences 6,834,369 - 6,834,369
Deferred tax on temporory differences 84,490,104 | (207,755,576) (123,265,472)
Deferred tax on carry forward of unused tax losses - - -
Deferred tax due to changes in tax rate - - -
Net Deferred tax asset/(liabilities) as on year end of Asar 2074 (123,265,472)
Deferred tax (asset)/liabilities as on shrawan 1, 2073 107,155,033
Origination/(Reversal) during the year 16,110,439
Deferred tax expense/(income) recognised in profit or loss 25,729,238
Deferred tax expense/(income) recognised in other (9,618,799)

comprehensive income

Deferred tax expense/(income) recognised in directly in equity
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4.16 Other assets

Particulars Asar 2075 Asar 2074 Shrawan 1, 2073
(Restated)
Assets held for sale - - -
Other non banking assets - - -
Bills receivable - - -
Accounts receivable 327,841,588 304,169,713 90,856,107
Accrued income - - -
Prepayments and deposit 78,155,834 72,799,383 67,911,859
Income tax deposit 68,365,933 64,464,933 32,663,933
Deferred employee expenditure 477,530,067 204,653,134 121,434,297
Other 111,511,979 71,167,696 54,703,221
Total 1,063,405,401 717,254,859 367,569,417
4.17 Due to Bank and Financial Institutions
Particulars Asar 2075 Asar 2074 Shrawan 1, 2073
(Restated)
Money market deposits - - -
Interbank borrowing - 40,001,096 1,000,024,658
Other deposits from BFls 754,253,957 546,659,587 902,605,161
Settlement and clearing accounts - - -
Other deposits from BFls - - -
Total 754,253,957 586,660,683 1,902,629,819
4.18 Due to Nepal Rastra Bank
Particulars Asar 2075 Asar 2074 Shrawan 1, 2073

(Restated)

Refinance from NRB

Standing Liquidity Facility

Lender of last report facility from NRB
Securities sold under repurchase agreements
Other payable to NRB

Total

26th Annual Report | 69




HBL

L. Himalayan Bank Ltd.

4.19 Derivative financial instruments

Particulars

Asar 2075

Asar 2074

Shrawan 1, 2073
(Restated)

Held for trading
Interest rate swap
Currency swap
Forward exchange contract
Others

Held for risk management
Interest rate swap
Currency swap
Forward exchange contract
Other

9,109,574

Total

9,109,574

4.20 Deposits from customers

Particulars

Asar 2075

Asar 2074

Shrawan 1, 2073
(Restated)

Institutions customers:
Term deposits
Call deposits
Current deposits
Other

Individual customers:
Term deposits
Saving deposits

9,888,724,174
4,027,837,839
605,468,087
390,785,306

31,770,447,366
38,996,612,798

9,898,991,157
3,001,263,564
1,117,769,351

57,710,090

27,512,082,898
38,133,808,753

9,683,754,111
6,687,398,228
410,380,068
98,233,546

7,079,761,328
46,428,555,761

Current deposits 8,994,368,281 7,547,419,887 7,974,417,204
Other 4,314,547,361 5,065,408,968 8,070,680,442
Total 98,988,791,212 92,334,454,668 86,433,180,688

4.20.1: Currency wise analysis of deposit from customers

Particulars

Asar 2075

Asar 2074

Shrawan 1, 2073
(Restated)

Nepalese rupee
Indian rupee
United State dollar

90,790,154,922

7,972,051,334

83,731,402,610

8,367,633,758

76,599,542,952

9,427,137,470

Great Britain pound 85,338,446 65,792,670 125,177,616
Euro 124,410,242 127,907,322 254,073,657
Japenese yen 13,024,942 39,435,651 20,511,421
Chinese yuan 868,185 804,750 366,767
Other 2,943,140 1,477,908 6,370,805
Total 98,988,791,212 92,334,454,668 86,433,180,688
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4.21 Borrowing

Particulars Asar 2075 Asar 2074 Shrawan 1, 2073
(Restated)

Domestic Borrowing
Nepal Government - - -
Other Institutions - - -
Other > - -

Sub total - - -

Foreign Borrowing
Foreign Bank and Financial Institutions = - -
Multilateral Development Banks - - -
Other Institutions = - -

Sub total - - -

Total - - -

4.22 Provisions

Particulars Asar 2075 Asar 2074 Shrawan 1, 2073
(Restated)

Provisions for redundancy - - -
Provision for restructuring - - -
Pending legal issues and tax litigation - - -
Onerous contracts - - -
Other 2,299,307 233,378,063 216,578,063

Total 2,299,307 233,378,063 216,578,063

4.22.1: Movement in provision

Particulars Asar 2075 Asar 2074 Shrawan 1, 2073
(Restated)
Balance at Shrawan 1 233,378,063 216,578,063 -
Provisions made during the year - 16,800,000 -
Provisions used during the year (231,078,756) - -

Provisions reversed during the year - - -
Unwind of discount > - -

Balance at Asar end 2,299,307 233,378,063 216,578,063
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4.23 Other liabilities

Particulars Asar 2075 Asar 2074 Shrawan 1, 2073
(Restated)
Liability for employees defined benefit obligations 26,848,604 40,325,852 59,075,798
Liability for long-service leave 245,327,235 257,554,326 224,198,364
Short-term employee benefits - - -
Bills payable 142,131,638 82,892,887 504,174,092
Creditors and accruals 21,354,299 254,818,169 211,646,686
Interest Payable on deposits 449,610,396 468,522,091 86,098,309
Interest payable on borrowing - - -
Liabilities on defered grant income = - -
Unpaid Dividend 31,980,755 21,802,681 66,412,337
Liabilities under Finance Lease = - -
Employee bonus payable 276,517,940 310,170,834 274,882,250
Other 620,557,887 398,264,132 533,261,149
Total 1,814,328,754 1,834,350,972 1,959,748,985

4.23.1: Defined benefit obligations

The amounts recognized in the statement of financial position are as follows:

Particulars Asar 2075 Asar 2074 Shrawan 1, 2073
(Restated)
Present value of unfunded obligations - - -
Present value of funded obligations 524,723,683 551,129,511 524,858,366
Total present value of obligations 524,723,683 551,129,511 524,858,366
Fair value of plan assets 497,875,079 510,803,659 465,782,568
Present value of net obligations 26,848,604 40,325,852 59,075,798
Recognised liability for defined benefit obligations 26,848,604 40,325,852 59,075,798
4.23.2: Plan assets
Plan assets comprise:
Particulars Asar 2075 Asar 2074 Shrawan 1, 2073
(Restated)
Equity securities - - -
Government bonds - - -
Bank deposit 497,875,079 510,803,659 465,782,568
Other - - -
Total 497,875,079 510,803,659 465,782,568

Actual return on plan assets
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4.23.3: Movement in the present value of defined benefit obligations

Particulars Asar 2075 Asar 2074 Shrawan 1, 2073
(Restated)
Defined benefit obligations at Shrawan 1 551,129,511 524,858,366 362,379,044
Actuarial losses (29,792,839) (31,495,017) 101,265,257
Benefits paid by the plan (84,748,908) (25,747,883) (7,449,302)
Current service costs and interest 88,135,919 83,514,045 68,663,367
Defined benefit obligations at Asar end 524,723,683 551,129,511 524,858,366
4.23.4: Movement in the fair value of plan assets
Particulars Asar 2075 Asar 2074 Shrawan 1, 2073
(Restated)
Fair value of plan assets at Shrawan 1 510,803,659 465,782,568 362,379,044
Contributions paid into the plan 71,820,328 70,768,974 110,852,826
Benefits paid during the year (84,748,908) (25,747,883) (7,449,302)
Actuarial (losses) gains - - -
Expected return on plan assets - - -
Fair value of plan assets at Asar end 497,875,079 510,803,659 465,782,568
4.23.5: Amount recognised in profit or loss
Particulars Asar 2075 Asar 2074 Shrawan 1, 2073
(Restated)
Current service costs 42,943,575 42,846,886 39,673,043
Interest on obligation 45,192,344 40,667,159 28,990,324
Expected return on plan assets - - -
Total 88,135,919 83,514,045 68,663,367
4.23.6: Amount recognised in other comprehensive income
Particulars Asar 2075 Asar 2074 Shrawan 1, 2073
(Restated)
Actuarial (gain)/loss (29,792,839) (31,495,017) 101,265,257
Total (29,792,839) (31,495,017) 101,265,257

4.23.7: Actuarial assumptions

Particulars Asar 2075 Asar 2074 Shrawan 1, 2073
(Restated)
Discount rate 9.00% 8.50% 8.00%
Expected return on plan asset 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Future salary increase 6.00% 6.00% 6.00%
Withdrawal rate 5.00% 5.00% 5.00%
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4.24 Debt securities issued

Particulars Asar 2075 Asar 2074 Shrawan 1, 2073
(Restated)
Debt securities issued designated as at fair value
through profit or loss - -
Debt securities issued at amortised cost 623,357,548 622,996,759 622,760,909
Total 623,357,548 622,996,759 622,760,909
4.25 Subordinated Liabilities
Particulars Asar 2075 Asar 2074 Shrawan 1, 2073
(Restated)
Redeemable preference shares - -
Irredemable cumulative preference shares (liabilities component) - -
Other - B
Total - - -
4.26 Share capital
Particulars Asar 2075 Asar 2074 Shrawan 1, 2073

(Restated)

Ordinary shares

Convertible preference shares (equity component only)
Irredemable preference shares (equity component only)
Perpetual debt (equity component only)

8,114,529,375

6,491,623,500

4,499,145,000

Total

8,114,529,375

6,491,623,500

4,499,145,000

4.26.1: Ordinary shares

Issued capital
81,145,294 Ordinary share of Rs. 100 each

Subscribed and paid up capital
81,145,294 Ordinary share of Rs. 100 each

8,114,529,375

8,114,529,375

6,491,623,500

6,491,623,500

Particulars Asar 2075 Asar 2074 Shrawan 1, 2073
(Restated)
Authorized Capital
100,000,000 Ordinary share of Rs. 100 each 10,000,000,000 8,500,000,000 8,500,000,000

4,499,145,000

4,499,145,000

Total

8,114,529,375

6,491,623,500

4,499,145,000
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4.26.2: Ordinary share ownership

Particulars Asar 2075 Asar 2074 Shrawan 1, 2073 (Restated)
Percent Amount Percent Amount Percent Amount

Domestic ownership
Nepal Government - - - - - -
“A” class licensed institutions - - - - - -
Other licensed intitutions - - - - - -
Other Institutions 65% 5,274,444,094 65% 4,219,555,275 65% 2,924,444,250
Public 15% 1,217,179,406 15% 973,743,525 15% 674,871,750
Other - - - - - -
Foreign ownership 20% 1,622,905,875 20% 1,298,324,700 20% 899,829,000
Total 100% | 8,114,529,375 | 100% | 6,491,623,500 | 100% | 4,499,145,000

4.27 Reserves

Particulars Asar 2075 Asar 2074 Shrawan 1, 2073

(Restated)

Statutory general reserve
Exchange equilisation reserve
Corporate social responsibility reserve
Capital redemption reserve
Regulatory reserve

Investment adjustment reserve
Capital reserve

Assets revaluation reserve

Fair value reserve

Dividend equalisation reserve
Actuarial gain

Special reserve

Other reserve

3,184,119,880
34,636,311
25,349,207
723,597,851

38,793,817

(39,977,401)

557,442,515

2,808,997,787
34,636,311
21,782,349

48,029,111
(69,770,240)
33,471,134
451,352,657

2,373,350,808
34,192,970

70,472,976
(101,265,257)
14,108,210
342,857,141

Total 4,523,962,180 3,328,499,109 2,733,716,848
. Asar 2075 Asar 2074 Shrawan 1, 2073

NOTE: (Restated)
Special reserve includes:

Capital Adjustment Reserve - 29,471,134 10,108,210

Special Reserve Fund - 4,000,000 4,000,000
Total Special Reserve - 33,471,134 14,108,210
Other reserve includes:

Bond Redemption Reserve 514,285,713 428,571,427 342,857,141

Employee Training and Development Fund 43,156,802 22,781,230 -
Total Other Reserve 557,442,515 451,352,657 342,857,141
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4.28 Contingent liabilities and commitments

Particulars

Asar 2075

Asar 2074

Shrawan 1, 2073
(Restated)

Contingent liabilities

32,269,432,841

24,235,591,791

24,999,586,444

Undrawn and undisbursed facilities 3,455,484,420 2,994,091,069 3,454,026,292
Capital commitment 32,406,951 - -
Lease Commitment - - -
Litigation 426,472,271 182,949,581 100,543,761
Total 36,183,796,482 27,412,632,440 28,554,156,497

4.28.1: Contingent liabilities

Particulars

Asar 2075

Asar 2074

Shrawan 1, 2073
(Restated)

Acceptance and documentary credit
Bills for collection

Forward exchange contracts
Guarantees

Underwriting commitment

Other commitments

14,371,288,695
1,076,037,596
5,890,999,775
6,408,163,036

4,522,943,739

10,394,851,920
3,267,003,805
42,242,179
6,474,794,216

4,056,699,670

10,267,188,406
3,246,945,701
1,168,528,954
4,952,439,228

5,364,484,155

Total

32,269,432,841

24,235,591,791

24,999,586,444

4.28.2: Undrawn and undisbursed facilities

Undrawn limits of credit cards
Undrawn limits of letter of credit
Undrawn limits of guarantee

Particulars Asar 2075 Asar 2074 Shrawan 1, 2073
(Restated)
Undisbursed amount of loans - - -
Undrawn limits of overdrafts 3,455,484,420 2,994,091,069 3,454,026,292

Total

3,455,484,420

2,994,091,069

3,454,026,292

4.28.3: Capital commitments

Capital expenditure approved by relevant authority of the bank but provision has not been made in financial statements

Particulars Asar 2075 Asar 2074 Shrawan 1, 2073
(Restated)

Capital commitments in relation to Property and Equipment

Approved and contracted for 24,768,644 - -
Approved but not contracted for 7,638,307 - -
Sub total 32,406,951 - -
Capital commitments in relation to Intangible assets

Approved and contracted for = - -
Approved but not contracted for = - -
Sub total - - -
Total 32,406,951 - -
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4.28.4: Lease commitments

Particulars Asar 2075 Asar 2074 Shrawan 1, 2073
(Restated)

Operating lease commitments

Future minimum lease payments under non cancellable
operating lease, where the bank is lessee

Not later than 1 year - - -
Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years - - -
Later than 5 years - - -

Sub total 5 - -

Finance lease commitments

Future minimum lease payments under non cancellable
operating lease, where the bank is lessee

Not later than 1 year - - -
Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years . - -
Later than 5 years 5 - -

Sub total - - -

Grand total - - -

4.28.5: Litigation

Claims & litigation is a common occurrence in the banking industry due to the nature of the business undertaken. The Bank
has formal controls and policies for managing legal claims. Once professional advice has been obtained and the amount of
loss reasonably estimated, the Bank makes adjustments to account for any adverse effects which the claims may have on
its financial standing. At the year end, the Bank had no major unresolved claims other than following:

Particulars Asar 2075 Asar 2074 Shrawan 1, 2073
(Restated)
Claims on Institutions but not accepted by bank
- Unpaid guarantee claims 216,975,035 18,156,550 18,156,550
Contingent liabilities on income tax - - -
- Assessment under appeal 209,497,236 164,793,031 82,387,211
426,472,271 182,949,581 100,543,761
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4.29 Interest income

Other

Particulars Asar 2075 Asar 2074
Cash and cash equivalent 66,030,332 64,958,056
Due from Nepal Rastra Bank - -
Placement with bank and financial institutions 74,832,369 73,719,962
Loan and advances to bank and financial institutions 337,595,991 174,622,669
Loans and advances to customers 8,820,245,079 6,502,010,531
Investment securities 387,014,543 240,858,572
Loan and advances to staff 39,152,578 50,506,309

Total interest income

9,724,870,892

7,106,676,099

4.30 Interest expense

Particulars

Asar 2075

Asar 2074

Due to bank and financial institutions
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank

Deposits from customers

Borrowing

Debt securities issued

Subordinated liabilities

Other

7,356,364

5,347,690,808

48,000,000

23,300,429

3,102,033,240

48,000,000

Total interest expense

5,403,047,172

3,173,333,669

4.31 Fees and Commission Income

Particulars Asar 2075 Asar 2074
Loan administration fees 94,985,361 87,566,916
Service fees - -
Consortium fees 904,130 923,580
Commitment fees - -
DD/TT/Swift fees 25,877,006 25,686,594
Credit card/ATM issuance and renewal fees 239,385,449 254,729,776
Prepayment and swap fees - -
Investment banking fees = -
Asset management fees = -
Brokerage fees - -
Remittance fees 115,833,270 93,199,179
Commission on letter of credit 81,498,688 79,020,227
Commission on guarantee contracts issued 90,144,198 92,489,630
Commission on share underwriting/issue - -
Locker rental 20,481,454 19,495,833
Other fees and commission income 102,928,265 131,640,035
Total Fees & Commission Income 772,037,821 784,751,770
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4.32 Fees and commission expense

Particulars Asar 2075 Asar 2074
ATM management fees -
VISA/Master card fees 33,215,292 27,502,340
Guarantee commission -
Brokerage -
DD/TT/Swift fees 9,788,125 9,096,917
Remittance fees and commission -
Other fees and commission expense 21,233,376 15,955,977
Total Fees & Commission Expense 64,236,793 52,555,234
Net Fees & Commission Income 707,801,028 732,196,536
4.33 Net trading income
Particulars Asar 2075 Asar 2074
Changes in fair value of trading assets =
Gain/loss on disposal of trading assets >
Interest income on trading assets =
Dividend income on trading assets = -
Gain/loss on foreign exchange transaction 718,904,848 607,848,833
Other -
Net Trading Income 718,904,848 607,848,833
4.34 Other operating income
Particulars Asar 2075 Asar 2074
Foreign exchange revauation gain (42,614,098) 1,773,362
Gain/loss on sale of investment securities - -
Fair value gain/loss on investment properties = -
Dividend on equity instruments 48,597,350 26,227,567
Gain/loss on sale of property and equipment 821,207 579,127
Gain/loss on sale of investment property 19,872,620 -
Operating lease income - -
Gain/loss on sale of gold and silver - -
Other 78,171,011 57,815,859
Total 104,848,090 86,395,915
4.35 Impairment charge/(reversal) for loan and other losses
Particulars Asar 2075 Asar 2074
Impairment charge/(reversal) on loan and advances to B/Fls 3,584,062 6,521,136
Impairment charge/(reversal) on loan and advances to customer 676,332,973 (114,713,942)
Impairment charge/(reversal) on financial Investment - -
Impairment charge/(reversal) on placement with banks and financial institutions - -
Impairment charge/(reversal) on property and equipment - -
Impairment charge/(reversal) on goodwill and intangible assets = -
Impairment charge/(reversal) on investment properties - -
Total 679,917,035 (108,192,806)
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4.36 Personnel Expense

Particulars Asar 2075 Asar 2074
Salary 355,083,763 351,995,370
Allowances 429,322,578 435,530,989
Gratuity Expense 88,135,919 83,514,045
Provident fund 31,767,926 32,575,508
Uniform 9,000,000 8,000,000
Training & development expense 11,255,172 27,253,082
Leave encashment 39,999,565 63,685,013
Medical - -
Insurance 27,933,063 29,782,141
Employees incentive - -
Cash-settled share-based payments - -
Pension expense - -
Finance expense under NFRS 12,338,194 20,383,190
Other expenses related to staff 40,894,019 44,247,152
Subtotal 1,045,730,199 1,096,966,490
Employees bonus 276,517,940 310,170,834
Grand total 1,322,248,139 1,407,137,324

Staff Loans are shown in fair value using the market rates, The differene of previous year’s day 1 difference and current year’s day
1 difference is amortised staff benefit expenses which is recognised as “Finance expenses under NFRS”.

4.37 Other operating expense

Particulars Asar 2075 Asar 2074
Directors’ fee 1,394,000 1,456,700
Directors’ expense 6,460,231 4,783,708
Auditors’ remuneration 1,921,000 1,921,000
Other audit related expense = -
Professional and legal expense 24,281,044 20,169,741
Office administration expense 432,393,316 395,408,743
Operating lease expense 172,191,137 161,719,081
Operating expense of investment properties - -
Corporate social responsibility expense 15,189,247 2,032,914
Onerous lease provisions = -
Other 40,440,783 25,204,440
Total 694,270,758 612,696,327

4.38 Depreciation & Amortisation

Particulars Asar 2075 Asar 2074
Depreciation on property and equipment 132,792,701 129,001,844
Depreciation on investment property - -
Amortisation of intangible assets 35,483,476 55,905,378
Total 168,276,177 184,907,222

4.39 Non operating income

Particulars Asar 2075 Asar 2074
Recovery of written off loan 16,371,060 10,408,002
Other income 293,154,178 4,283,241
Total 309,525,238 14,691,243
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4.40 Non operating expense

Particulars Asar 2075 Asar 2074
Loan write offs 20,936,778 8,114,430
Redundancy provision - -
Expense of restructuring - -
Other expense 512,074,634 15,211,226
Total 533,011,412 23,325,656

Note: Other expense in FY 2074/75 includes expenses incurred on Voluntary Retirement Scheme of the Bank amounting to

Rs. 50,894,830

4.41 Income tax expense

Particulars Asar 2075 Asar 2074
Current tax expense
Current year 875,040,440 945,628,135
Adjustments for prior years 2,571,952 1,469,670

877,612,392 947,097,805
Deferred tax expense
Origination and reversal of temporary differences 11,956,544 25,729,238
Changes in tax rate - -
Recognition of previously unrecognised tax losses = -
Total income tax expense 889,568,936 972,827,043
4.41.1: Reconciliation of tax expense and accounting profit

Particulars Asar 2075 Asar 2074
Profit before tax 2,765,179,403 3,254,601,234
Tax amount at tax rate of 30% 829,553,821 976,380,370
Add: Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible for tax purpose 240,712,691 94,162,220
Less: Tax effect on exempt income (195,552,229) (79,046,587)
Add/less: Tax effect on other items 14,854,653 (18,668,960)
Total income tax expense 889,568,936 972,827,043
Effective tax rate 32.17% 29.89%

Movement in Regulatory Reserve

The impact due to adoption of NFRS in the Opening Statement of Financial Position ( i.e Ashadh 2075) has been transferred
from Retained Earning to Regulatory Reserve, the details of which are presented below:

Regulatory Reserve Breakdown Asar 2075
Particulars Remarks Rs.
Loans & Advances to Customers and BFIS Recognition of accrual basis income on loan 681,321,143
Investment Property Fair Value of Investment Property (NBA) 2,299,307
Actuarial Loss Transfer of Gross value of Actuarial Loss 39,977,401
Net Balance of Regulatory Reserve 723,597,851
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5. DISCLOSURE & ADDITIONAL INFORMATION
5.1 Risk management

HBL realizes the ever-increasing need for a comprehensive risk assessment & management system at all levels of
operation and has therefore instilled a strong control & monitoring environment within the bank. An effective internal
control system is in place which defines rights, authorities, responsibilities and accountability at different levels of
management with detailed working procedures laid out for various operational aspects. A systematic assessment process
has been developed to ensure compliance with the requirements of the Capital Adequacy Framework based on Basel
accord as well as other statutory and regulatory requirements. The entire risk assessment and internal control system
is reviewed periodically by Senior Management to address loopholes and risk areas identified in the course of operation
as well as those considered potential given the dynamic environment of the banking industry.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Bank if a borrower or counterparty to a financial instrument, fails to meet
its contractual obligations and arises principally from the Bank’s loans and advances to customers/other banks and
investments in debt securities. In addition to the direct funding exposure, the bank would also be exposed to credit risk
on account of indirect liabilities such as letters of credit, guarantees etc.

Credit Risk at HBL is being managed through implementation of Credit Policy Guidelines, Credit Policy Manual, and
specific Product Documents developed for each banking product. These policies, manual & product documents lay
down the basic framework for credit appraisal & authority for approval. A comprehensive credit risk assessment process
has been defined which involves individual appraisal of all borrowers including corporate, institutional & SME borrowers
against stipulated criteria & also encompasses assignment of systematic credit ratings. The Risk Management Department
reviews and assesses the risk associated with individual credit proposals above the set threshold and also reviews &
appraises the overall loan portfolio of the bank with respect to risk concentration, market scenario & recommends
initiatives to be taken for improved risk management. The Board of Directors on its own & also through Risk Management
Committee under coordination of a non-executive director further reviews the overall credit & other risk in the light of
the current market conditions & management analysis & issues necessary instructions including amendments to policies
in order to strengthen the bank’s credit portfolio. The credit administration function of the bank is centralized and all
approved facilities are implemented only after scrutiny of related security and other documents and after reasonable
assurance of compliance with approving conditions.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate due to adverse
movements in market variables such as interest rates, foreign exchange rates, commodity prices and equity prices. This
risk is continuously monitored by the Treasury Department under direct supervision of the Executive Financial Officer
& General Manager. A comprehensive treasury manual is in place which defines procedures & authority aimed at
regulating the related activities including setting up of various risk limits & risk hedging. Net open position of all currencies
is prepared on daily basis and reported to the management for necessary review & risk / return assessment. Periodic
reporting is done to Assets Liabilities Management Committee which reviews the associated risks and returns, assesses
the impact of the exposure on the bank’s capital adequacy position and makes periodic reports to the Board of Directors.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Bank may encounter difficulties in meeting its financial commitments that are settled
by delivering cash or another financial asset. Hence the bank may be unable to meet its payment obligations when they
fall due under both normal and stress circumstances. With the objective of limiting this risk, the management has
arranged for diversified funding sources in addition to its core deposit base and adopted a policy of continuously
managing assets with liquidity in mind and of monitoring future cash flows and liquidity on a daily basis. The bank has
developed internal control processes and contingency plans for managing liquidity risk. This incorporates an assessment
of expected cash flows and ensuring availability of high grade collateral which could be used to secure additional funding
at any given time.

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities

Fair value represents value at which an asset can be exchanged or a liability can be discharged in an orderly transaction
on a given date. Fair value accounting is a means to ensure that the balance sheet reflects the current value of assets
and liabilities with corresponding effects for changes duly given in the income statement. The bank accounts for fair
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value of financial assets and liabilities using the standard valuation hierarchy depending on the nature of assets / liabilities
which involves reliance on quoted market prices, value of similar nature asset / liability and acceptable valuation
techniques.

Capital management
(i) Qualitative disclosures

The Bank aims to have a comfortable capital position with adequate cushion over the regulatory requirement. Higher
dependency is placed on equity which is being strengthened by the Bank’s policy of distribution of dividend in both
scrip and cash form. The Bank further issues subordinated bonds on need basis as a part of Tier Il capital. The
capital base position is monitored on a daily basis to avoid any unwanted capital constraints and to ensure that
required capital is there to pave way for the planned growth.

(ii) Quantitative disclosures

1. Capital structure and capital adequacy

1. Tier 1 Capital and Breakdown of its Components:

S. No. Particulars Amount
A Core Capital (Tier 1) 13,131,659,830
1 Paid up Equity Share Capital 8,114,529,375
2 Statutory General Reserves 3,184,119,880
3 Retained Earnings 1,500,405,440
4 Debenture Redemption Reserve 514,285,713
5 Less: Investment in equity of institutions with financial interests 98,124,000
6 Less: Purchase of land & building in excess of limit and unutilized 83,556,578

2. Tier 2 Capital and Breakdown of its Components

S. No. Particulars Amount
A Supplementary Capital (Tier 2) 1,217,838,627
1 Subordinated Term Debt 240,000,000
2 General loan loss provision 943,202,316
3 Exchange Equalization Reserve 34,636,311
4 Investment Adjustment Reserve -
5 Other Reserves -

3. Information on Subordinated Term Debt:

Bond Issued HBL Bond 2077

Outstanding amount 600,000,000

Interest rate 8%

Maturity Date Ashad 2077

Interest payment Half yearly basis

Tenor 7 years

Amount to be reckoned as capital 240,000,000
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4. Total deductions from Capital: N/a

5. Total Qualifying Capital

S. No.

Particulars

Amount

1

Core Capital (Tier 1)

13,131,659,830

2

Supplementary Capital (Tier 2)

1,217,838,627

Total

14,349,498,457

6. Capital Adequacy Ratio:

Tier 1 Capital to Total Risk Weighted Exposures

11.40%

Tier 1 and Tier 2 Capital to Total Risk Weighted Exposures

12.46%

2. Risk exposures

1. Risk Weighted Exposures for Credit Risk, Market Risk & Operational Risks

RISK WEIGHTED EXPOSURES

a Risk Weighted Exposure for Credit Risk 101,647,561,548

b Risk Weighted Exposure for Operational Risk 7,111,149,947

c Risk Weighted Exposure for Market Risk 425,030,841
Adjustment under Pillar Il

Add 5% of gross income for operational risk 2,680,965,560

Add: 3% of total RWE for overalll risk 3,275,512,270

Total Risk Weighted Exposures

115,140,220,166

2. Risk Weighted Exposures under each of 11 categories of Credit Risk

S. No. Particulars Amount
1 Claims on government & central bank 545,063,662
2 Claims on other official entities 1,069,468,526
3 Claims on banks 2,450,338,928
4 Claims on domestic corporate and securities firms 63,815,303,590
5 Claims on regulatory retail portfolio 6,026,040,371
6 Claims secured by residential properties 3,465,802,078
7 Claims secured by commercial real estate 1,975,313,336
8 Past due claims 571,000,801
9 High risk claims 7,045,480,065
10 Other assets 3,387,935,497
11 Off balance sheet items 11,295,814,693
Total 101,647,561,548
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3. Total Risk Weighted Exposures calculation table:

S. No. Particulars Amount
1 Total Risk Weighted Exposure 115,140,220,166
2 Total Core Capital Fund (Tier 1) 13,131,659,830
3 Total Capital Fund (Tier 1 & Tier 2) 14,349,498,457
4 Total Core Capital to Total Risk Weighted Exposures 11.40%
5 Total Capital to Total Risk Weighted Exposures 12.46%

4. Amount of NPA

S. No. Loan Classification Gross Amount Provision Held Net NPA
1 Restructured Loan 6,289,782 5,510,020 779,763
2 Substandard Loan 206,528,505 51,632,126 154,896,378
3 Doubtful Loan 79,749,971 39,874,985 39,874,985
4 Loss Loan 925,772,063 874,494,307 51,277,755
Total 1,218,340,321 971,511,439 246,828,882

5. NPA Ratios

Gross NPA to Gross Advances 1.40%

Net NPA to Net Advances: 0.29%

(iii) Compliance with external requirement

The Bank through-out the reporting period has fully complied with the capital requirements imposed by the Regular
for ‘A’ class commercial banks operating in the country.

5.3 Classification of financial assets and financial liabilities

Financial instruments are measured on an ongoing basis either at fair value or at amortized cost. The accounting policies
describe how each category of financial instrument is measured and how income and expenses, including fair value
gains and losses, are recognized.

5.4 Operating Segment Information
1. General information

a) The Bank has branches operating in different provinces across the country. All the branches are full scope
branches and are entitled to carry out all types of transactions that the Bank is licensed for. The Bank has
therefore identified reporting segments on the basis of provinces in which the branches are located. However,
two independent profit centers, namely, Remittance Center and Card Center have been reported as a separate
segment along with the Corporate Office.

b) Following are the main products and services from which each reportable segment derives its revenues:

a) Loan and Advances

b) Letter of Credit

) Guarantee
d) Remittance

) Card service
Locker Service

=

g) Bills purchase and discounting

=)

) Collection service

(
(
(
(
(e
(
(
(
(

=

Other ancillary services

26th Annual Report | 85



HBL

»Himalayan Bank Ltd.

2. Information about profit or loss, assets and liabilities

Province Head Office
Particulars and other Total
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 profit center
(a) Revenues from external
customers 770,184,953 | 815,334,602 | 6,337,315,740| 212,798,302 | 1,415,552,724 | 207,128 | 148,733,820 1,456,447,120| 11,156,574,388
(b) Intersegment revenues 6,638,562 - 711,948,037| 35,588,400 17,591,613 - 37,541,354 809,307,966
(c) NetRevenue 776,823,515 | 815,334,602 | 7,049,263,777| 248,386,702 | 1,433,144,337 | 207,128 | 148,733,820 1,493,988,473| 11,965,882,354
(d) Interest revenue 731,600,105 | 775,964,623 | 5,888,775,760| 200,210,877 | 1,348,765,057 92,562 | 143,500,306 541,165,518 9,630,074,808
(e) Interest expense 148,564,004 | 126,772,199 | 4,595,885,691| 119,420,867 | 190,035,589 | 622,942 9,195,774 212,550,106| 5,403,047,172
(f) Netinterest revenue 583,036,101 | 649,192,424 | 1,292,890,069| 80,790,011 | 1,158,729,469 | (530,381)| 134,304,532| 328,615,412| 4,227,027,636
(9) Depreciation and amortisation 9,571,404 1,971,507 26,547,050 2,540,032 5,372,890 | 343,423 1,579,449 120,524,031 168,449,786
(h) Segment profit /(loss) 514,716,206 | 630,544,247 524,085,699| 101,775,254 | 1,113,418,115(4,275,063) | 121,981,713| (46,461,993)| 2,955,784,179
(i) Entity's interest in the profit or - -
loss of associates accounted
for using equity method
() Other material non-cash items: - -
(k) Impairment of assets 79,701,690 | 101,920,696 | 1,568,003,687 | 17,153,209 | 142,115,456 | 123527 | 12,444,048 5172,312| 1,926,634,625
() Segment assets 4,057,496,920 | 2,047,164,133 | 85,838,930,982|3,012,819,782 | 5,589,464,752 | 41,171,471 | 325,718,954|14,909,306,574|115,822,073,568
(m) Segment liabilities 3,798,790,990 | 1,908,234,392 | 83,347,473,112|2,907,780,416 | 5,142,571,735|42,691,908 | 296,540,312| 4,849,086,270|102,293,169,135

3. Measurement of operating segment profit or loss, assets and liabilities

(a) Basis of accounting for transactions between reportable segments.

Each segments account is prepared on accrual basis and transactions between segments are conducted at
a pre-determined price.

(b)

profit or loss before income tax.

Differences between the measurements of the reportable segments profits or losses and the entity’s

Profit or losses of the reportable segments before staff bonus are measured on accrual basis based on local
GAAP that existed before adoption of NFRS where as entity’s profit or losses are prepared on accrual basis
in accordance with NFRS. Thus, the difference is caused due to remeasurement of the items under NFRS.

(c)

Differences between the measurements of the reportable segments’ assets and the entity’s asset.

Assets of the reportable segments are measured at cost, whereas entity’s assets are measured at fair value in
accordance with NFRS, wherever applicable.

(d)

segment profit or loss.

None.

(e)

All allocations are symetrically done.

Nature and effect of any asymmetrical allocations to reportable segments.

4. Reconciliations of reportable segment revenues, profit or loss, assets and liabilities

1. Revenue

Total revenues for reportable segments

11,156,574,388

Other revenues 973,395,229
Elimination of intersegment revenues (809,307,966)
Entity’s revenues 11,320,661,651

Nature of any changes from prior periods in the measurement methods used to determine reported
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2. Profit or loss

Total profit or loss for reportable segments

2,955,784,179

Other profit or loss 85,913,164
Elimination of intersegment profits -
Unallocated amounts:

Staff bonus (276,517,940)

Profit before income tax

2,765,179,403

3. Assets

Total assets for reportable segments

115,822,073,568

Other assets

640,227,812

Unallocated amounts

Entity’s assets

116,462,301,380

4. Liabilities

Total liabilities for reportable segments

102,293,169,135

Other liabilities 30,235,250
Unallocated liabilities -
Entity’s liabilities 102,323,404,385

5. Information about products and services

Revenue from each type of product and services described in point no. 1 (b) above:

a) | Loan and Advances

9,102,418,570

(
(

b) | Letter of Credit 81,498,688
(c) | Guarantee 90,144,198
(d) | Remittance 115,833,270
(e) | Card service 148,361,910

() | Locker Service 20,481,454
(9) | Bills purchase and discounting 8,559,268
(h) | Collection service 46,518,053

(i) other ancillary services

1,542,758,977

Total

11,156,574,388

6. Information about geographical areas

Revenue from following geographical areas:

(a) | Domestic 11,156,574,388
Province 1 770,184,953
Province 2 815,334,602
Province 3 7,793,762,860
Province 4 212,798,302
Province 5 1,415,552,724
Province 6 207,128
Province 7 148,733,820

(b) | Foreign -
Total 11,156,574,388
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5.5

5.6

5.7

7. Information about major customers

The customers of the Bank do not individually / singly contribute 10% or more of the entity’s revenue.

Share options and share based payment

As per NFRS 2, an entity shall recognize the goods or services received or acquired in a share-based payment transaction
when it obtains the goods or as the services are received. Corresponding increase in equity is recognized if the goods
or services are received in an equity-settled share-based payment transaction or a liability if the goods or services are
acquired in a cash-settled share-based payment transaction.

The Bank has not entered into any share options and share based payment transaction till date.
Contingent liabilities and commitment

The Bank creates a provision when there is a present obligation as a result of past events that probably require an
outflow of resources and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. A disclosure for contingent
liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may, but probably will not, require an
outflow of resources. The details regarding the contingent liabilities are disclosed in Note 4.28.

Related parties disclosures

The Bank carries out transactions in the ordinary course of business with parties that fall within the ambit of related
parties as defined in Nepal Accounting Standard - NAS 24 (Related Party Disclosures). The pricing applicable to such
transactions is based on the assessment of risk and pricing model of the Bank and is comparable with what is applied
to transactions between the Bank and its unrelated customers.

By virtue of its shareholding of over 10 per cent in the Bank and representation in the Board of Directors, Habib Bank
Limited and Karmachari Sanchaya Kosh are related parties to the Bank. Transactions with related parties during the
reporting period is given below:

Transaction with Habib Bank Ltd.

Particulars Asar 2075 Asar 2074 Asar 2073
Deposits with Habib Bank
Due from Habib Bank 2,660,179 23,700,000 42,011,580
Placements in Habib bank 1,096,500,000 1,751,000,000 1,765,500,000
Due to Habib bank - - (59,930,938)

Total

1,099,160,179

1,774,700,000

1,747,580,642

For the Year Ended

Note: Due from Habib Bank is GBP 18,341.

Interest Received 34,626,252 12,953,074 11,845,007
Dividend Paid - 33,326,999 33,326,999
Total 34,626,252 46,280,073 45,172,006
Transaction with Karmachari Sanchaya Kosh

Particulars Asar 2075 Asar 2074 Asar 2073
Rental Expense paid 54,654,600 54,254,300 49,686,000
Total 54,654,600 54,254,300 49,686,000

Further to above transactions, the bank during the year has entered into a contract for purchasing a plot of land in
Nepalgunj for a consideration of Rs 133.50 million from a party who is a borrower of the bank availing various funded
and non-funded credit facilities and therefore falls within the ambit of related party transactions. The land has been
acquired in compliance with the provisions/ procedures laid out in the Financial By-Laws of the bank and will be utilized
for construction of branch premises.
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Transaction with Parent, Subsidiary and Other Affiliates
The Bank neither has an identifiable parent or a subsidiary of its own.
Transactions with Key Managerial Personnel (KMPs)

According to Nepal Accounting Standard - NAS 24 (Related Party Disclosures) Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) are
those having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the entity. Such KMPs
include the Board of Directors and Executives (from Deputy General Manager and above) of the Bank. Transactions
with Key Managerial Personnel are summarized below:

Transactions with Key Managerial Personnel (KMPs)

Particulars Asar 2075 Asar 2074 Asar 2073
Board of Directors
Benefits 3,662,407 3,741,195 3,971,886
Total 3,662,407 3,741,195 3,971,886
Chief Executive Officer
Short term employee benefits 14,498,630 13,000,000 13,500,000
Other Benefits 1,129,477 1,103,136 1,108,951
Post-employment benefits - - -
Total 15,628,107 14,103,136 14,608,951
Key Management Executives

Particulars Asar 2075 Asar 2074 Asar 2073
Short term employee benefits 63,381,925 61,093,923 59,094,680
Other Benefits 6,770,960 7,049,426 6,695,544
Post-employment benefits - - -
Total 70,152,885 68,143,349 65,790,224

Key Management Executives are entitled to Gratuity and Leave Encashment Facilities as post-employment benefits as
per the Employees’ Service Bye-Laws of the Bank. They are further provided with subsidized loans and advances and
vehicle facility. The Deputy Chief Executive Officer, an expat on secondment deputation from Habib Bank Limited, is
also provided with a full furnished residence.

5.8 Merger and acquisition

The Bank has not undergone any merger or acquisition during the reporting period.
5.9 Additional disclosures of non consolidated entities

The details regarding the associates have been disclosed in Note 4.110f the Financial Statements.
5.10 Events after reporting date.

Events after the reporting period are those events, both favorable and unfavorable, that occur between the reporting
date and the date when the Financial Statements are authorized for issue.

No circumstances have arisen since the reporting date which would require adjustments to, or disclosure in the financial
statements, other than the following:

Proposed Dividends

The Board of Directors have recommended 5% stock dividend and 10.7895% cash dividend for the financial year. This
dividend proposal is to be approved by the shareholders in the annual general meeting.

In accordance with Nepal Accounting Standard - NAS 10 (Events after the Reporting Period) this proposed final dividend
has not been recognised as a liability as at 32 Asar 2075.
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5.11 Disclosure effect of transition from previous GAAP to NFRS

1. Reconciliation of equity

As at 01.04.2073 | As at 31.03.2074
Particulars Explanatory (Date of (End of last period

Note Transition) presented under

previous GAAP)

Total equity under Previous GAAP 8,894,807,260 11,790,613,535

Adjustments under NFRSs:

Impairment on loan and advances - -
Fair value & employees benefit accounting of staff loan - -
Lease accounting - -
Measurement of investment securities at fair value 1 100,675,680 68,613,016
Revaluation of property & equipment - -
Recognition of investment property - -
Amortisation of debt securities issued - -
Deferred tax 2 (176,669,802) (216,404,598)
Defined benefit obligation of employees 3 49,880,419 86,403,349
Goodwill/Bargain purchase gain - -
Interest income 4 453,950,248 599,124,894
Other 5 (1083,465) (121,165)
Amortization of Investment in Foreign Bonds 6 (3,913,830) (1,298,124)
Reversal of Provision on Investment 7 1,214,859 1,214,859
Total Adjustment to equity 425,034,108 537,532,231
Total Equity under NFRSs 9,319,841,368 12,328,145,766

Explanatory Note:

1. Measurement of investment securities at fair value
Investment in Quoted Equity (Grameen Bikash Laghubitta Sanstha) has been recogised at FVOCI which was
earlier recognized at cost.
Particulars 2072-73 2073-74
Increment in Fair value of equities recognised at FVOCI 100,675,680 68,613,016
Total Effect of Transition 100,675,680 68,613,016
2. Deferred Tax
Deferred tax on the remeasured assets and liabilities have been accounted for and the corresponding effect
has been duly adjusted in equity.
3. Defined benefit obligation of employees

As required under NAS-19 “Employee Benefits”, post-employment benefits comprising of gratuity and leave
encashment for staff has been reassessed under actuarial valuation and the impact has been adjusted in equity.

4. Interest income

Under Previous GAAP, interest income on loans &advances was recognized on cash basis. The subsequent
accounting of interest income on accrual basis has given rise to differences in interest income which has resulted
in increment of equity.
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5. Other
Those assets and liabilities that have met the recognition/derecognition criteria under NFRS have been
recognized/derecognised accordingly and the effect has been adjusted in equity.
Particulars 2072-73 2073-74
Net Value of the Deferred Carpet Expenses derecognised (103,465) (121,165)
Total Effect of Transition (103,465) (121,165)
6. Amortization of Investment in Foreign Bonds
The investment in Foreign Bonds has been recognized using the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) Method and the
difference has been charged to equity through income statement.
Particulars 2072-73 2073-74
Net Asset Impact due to use of EIR method (3,913,830) (1,298,124)
Net Impact (3,913,830) (1,298,124)
7. Reversal of Provision on Investment

Provision made earlier for investment in shares of SWIFT has been reversed and transferred directly to Retained

Earning. The impact of the same in the financials is:

Particulars 2072-73 2073-74
NRB Provision Reversal (1,214,859) (1,214,859)
Total Effect of Transition (1,214,859) (1,214,859)

2. Reconciliation of profit or loss

Particulars Explanatory For the year ended 31.03.2074
Note (the latest period presented under
previous GAAP)
Profit/(Loss) for the year

Previous GAAP 2,178,234,893
Adjustments under NFRSs:
Interest income 8 168,173,543
Impairment of loan and advances -
Employees benefit amortisation under staff loan 9 (20,383,190)
Defined benefit obligation of employee 10 5,027,913
Operating lease expense -
Amortisation expense of debt securities -
Other operating income -
Interest expense -
Depreciation & Amortisation -
Other 11 (49,278,966)
Total Adjustment to profit or loss 103,539,300
Profit or loss under NFRSs 2,281,774,191
Other Comprehensive Income 9,051,152
Total Comprehensive income under NFRSs 2,290,825,343
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Explanatory Note:

8 Interest income

Interest Income has increased due to recognition of Interest Income on accrual basis and amortization of prepaid

employee benefit.

Particulars Amount
Additional recognition of accrual basis income on Loans and Advances 145,174,646
Additional Interest Income under EIR Method for Investment Securities 2,615,707
Amortization of Prepaid Employee Benefit 20,383,190
Total Adjustments 168,173,543

9 Employees benefit amortisation under staff loan

Amortization of the prepaid employee benefit results in recognition of both income and expenses. The amortized
amount is recorded as income under interest income and the corresponding expense is booked under “Personnel

Expense”

10 Defined benefit obligation of employee

Actuarial Valuation of the employee benefits has been done and the effect of the same in the statement of profit

or loss has been provided.

11 Other

Other Adjustments resulting in the increase/(decrease) of the profit are:

Particulars Amount
Derecognition of Amortization of Deferred Carpet Expenses 74,627
Deferred Tax Adjustment (49,353,593)

Total Adjustments

(49,278,966)
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3. Effect of NFRSs adoption for the statement of financial position

As at 01.04.2073 (Date of Transition) As at 31.03.2074 (End of last period
presented under previous GAAP)
Particulars Explana| Previous Effect of | Opening NFRS | Previous Effect of |Opening NFRS
tory GAAP Transition | Statement of GAAP Transition | Statement of
Note to NFRS Financial to NFRS Financial
Position Position

Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents 7,209,691,163 7,209,691,163 4,734,344,144 - 4,734,344,144
Due from Nepal Rastra Bank 5,677,702,310 5,677,702,310 6,141,151,917 - 6,141,151,917
Placements with Bank and Financial Institutions 4,623,810,955 4,623,810,955 6,272,030,993 - 6,272,030,993
Derivative financial instruments 25,568,291 25,568,291 42,242,179 - 42,242,179
Other trading assets - - -
Loans & Advances to BFls 12 2,677,863,253 [ 4,001,481 | 2,681,864,734 | 3,323,455,698| 2,970,288 | 3,326,425,986
Loans & Advances to Customers 13 | 65,819,439,489 | 449,948,766 | 66,269,388,255 | 73,875,655,121 | 596,154,606 | 74,471,809,727
Investment Securities 14 11,092,980,363 | 97,976,709 | 11,190,957,071 9,580,266,929 | 68,529,751 9,648,796,680
Current Tax Assets 71,317,586 71,317,586 28,113,687 - 28,113,687
Investments in subsidiaries - - -
Investments in Associates 195,785,700 195,785,700 195,785,700 - 195,785,700
Investment Property 15 216,578,063 216,578,063 233,378,063 233,378,063
Property & Equipment 1,922,966,664 1,922,966,664 2,175,892,638 - 2,175,892,638
Goodwill and Intangible Assets 108,694,657 108,694,657 76,025,808 - 76,025,808
Deferred Tax Assets 16 69,514,769 | (69,514,769) - 93,139,126 | (93,139,126) -
Other Assets 17 367,672,880 (103,465) 367,569,416 717,376,025 (121,165) 717,254,859
Total Assets 99,863,008,080 | 698,886,785 | 100,561,894,865 |107,255,479,966 | 807,772,417 |108,063,252,383
Liabilities
Due to Bank and Financial Institutions 1,902,629,818 1,902,629,818 586,660,683 - 586,660,683
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank - - -
Derivative financial instruments - - - - -
Deposits from Customers 86,433,180,688 86,433,180,688 | 92,334,454,668 - | 92,334,454,668
Borrowing - - -
Current Tax Liabilities - - -
Provisions 18 216,578,063 216,578,063 233,378,063 233,378,063
Deferred Tax Liabilities 16 107,155,033 107,155,033 123,265,472 123,265,472
Other Liabilities 19 2,009,629,404 | (49,880,419) 1,959,748,985 1,920,754,321 | (86,403,349) 1,834,350,972
Debt Securities Issued 622,760,909 622,760,909 622,996,759 - 622,996,759
Subordinated Liabilities - - -
Total Liabilities 90,968,200,820 | 273,852,677 | 91,242,053,497 | 95,464,866,431 | 270,240,186 | 95,735,106,617
Equity
Share Capital 4,499,145,000 4,499,145,000 | 6,491,623,500 - | 6,491,623,500
Share Premium - - -
Retained Earnings 20 1,631,153,131 | 455,826,389 | 2,086,979,520 | 1,948,749,797 | 559,273,360 | 2,508,023,157
Reserves 21 2,764,509,129 | (30,792,281) 2,733,716,848 3,350,240,238 | (21,741,129) 3,328,499,109
Total Equity attributable to Equity Holders 8,894,807,260 | 425,034,108 9,319,841,368 | 11,790,613,535 537,532,231 | 12,328,145,766
Non Controlling Interest - -
Total Equity 8,894,807,260 | 425,034,108 9,319,841,368 | 11,790,613,535| 537,532,231 | 12,328,145,766
Total Liabilities and Equity 99,863,008,080 | 698,886,785 | 100,561,894,865 107,255,479,966 | 807,772,417 | 108,063,252,383
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Explanatory Note:

12 Loans and Advances to BFIS and to customers

Loans and advances to customers in previous GAAP were recognized net of provision. However, with the
adoption of NFRS, the loans and advances need to be recognized at amortized cost, net of Impairment.

Particulars 2072-73 2073-74
The details of the same are:
AIR on Loans and Advances 449,680,303 595,926,763
AIR on Staff Loan 268,463 227,843
Total Effect of Transition 449,948,766 596,154,606

13 Out of the total loans advanced to the customers, the loan and the AIR portion of the loan to BFIs have been

seggregated accordingly.

Particulars

2072-73

2073-74

Loans to BFIS
AIR on Loans provided to BFlIs

2,704,912,377
4,001,481

3,357,025,958
2,970,288

Total Amortized Cost

2,708,913,858

3,359,996,246

Less: Impairment

(27,049,124)

(33,570,260)

Net Loans and Advances to BFls

2,681,864,734

3,326,425,986

14 Investment Securities

The Debt Securities have been recorded using the effective interest rate method, as prescribed by NFRS. The

remeasurement details of the same are:

Particulars 2072-73 2073-74
Reversal of Provision 1,214,859 1,214,859
Net Asset Impact due to adoption of EIR method (3,913,830) (1,298,124)
Fair Value Increment in Instruments recorded @FVOCI 100,675,680 68,613,016
Total Effect of Transition 97,976,709 68,529,751

15 Investment Property

The gross amount of the value of Non-Banking Assets recognized under previous GAAP has been considered
to be fair value of the Investment Property at the date of transition to NFRS. Accordingly, an amount equal to
the value of the asset has been credited to Regulatory Reserve.

Particulars 2072-73 2073-74
Opening Value of Investment Property - 216,578,063
Additions during the year 216,578,063 16,800,000
Sale of Investment Property - -
Closing Value of Investment Property 216,578,063 233,378,063
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16 Deferred Tax Assets
Revised deferred tax has been calculated based on remeasured assets and liabilities of the bank. The calculation
detail of the same has been provided under Schedule 4.15.

17 Other Assets

Those assets that fulfill the recognition/derecognition criteria under NFRS have been recognised/derecognised
accordingly. The details of the same are:

Particulars 2072-73 2073-74
Derecognition of Net Value of the Deferred Carpet Expenses (103,465) (121,165)
Total Effect of Transition (103,465) (121,165)

18 Provisions

The provision against the Investment Property (Non Banking Assets) has been recognized separately.

19 Other Liabilities

Those assets that fulfill the recognition/derecognition criteria under NFRS have been recognised/derecognised
accordingly. The details of the same are:

Particulars 2072-73 2073-74

Increment/ Decrement in defined benefit obligations due to
actuarial valuation (49,880,419) (86,403,349)

Total Effect of Transition (49,880,419) (86,403,349)

20 Retained Earning

Impact of the adjustment made with the transition to NFRS has been duly effected in retained earning in line
with NFRS 1.

21 Reserves

Fair Value Reserve and Reserve for Actuarial Gain/(Loss) as per the requirement of NFRS has been created.
The details of the reserves have been provided in the Schedule 4.27
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4. Effect of NFRSs adoption for statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income

For the year ended 31.03.2074 (the latest

Particulars Explan period presented under previous GAAP)
atory Previous Effect of Amount
Note GAAP Transition as per NFRSs
to NFRSs
Interest income 22 6,938,502,556 | 168,173,543 7,106,676,099
Interest expense (3,173,333,669) - (3,173,333,669)
Net interest income 3,765,168,887 - 3,933,342,430
Fee and commission income 784,751,770 - 784,751,770
Fee and commission expense (52,555,234) - (52,555,234)
Net fee and commission income 732,196,536 - 732,196,536
Net interest, fee and commission income 4,497,365,423 - 4,665,538,966
Net trading income 607,848,833 - 607,848,833
Other operating income 86,395,915 - 86,395,915
Total operating income 5,191,610,171 - 5,359,783,714
Impairment charge/(reversal) for loans and other losses 108,192,805 - 108,192,805
Net operating income 5,299,802,976 - 5,467,976,519
Operating expense
Personnel expenses 23 | (1,391,782,047) | (15,355,277) | (1,407,137,324)
Other operating expenses 24 (612,770,953) 74,627 (612,696,327)
Depreciation & Amortisation (184,907,222) - (184,907,222)
Operating Profit 3,110,342,754 - 3,263,235,647
Non operating income 14,691,243 - 14,691,243
Non operating expense (23,325,656) - (23,325,656)
Profit before income tax 3,101,708,341 - 3,254,601,234
Income tax expense -
Current Tax (947,097,805) - (947,097,805)
Deferred Tax 25 23,624,357 | (49,353,593) (25,729,238)
Profit for the year 2,178,234,893 - 2,281,774,191
Other comprehensive income 26 - 9,051,152 9,051,152
Total comprehensive income - - 2,290,825,343
Explanatory Note:
22 Interest income
Particulars Amount
Additional recognition of accrual basis income on Loans and Advances 145,174,646
Additional Interest Income under EIR Method for Investment Securities 2,615,707
Amortization of Prepaid Employee Benefit 20,383,190
Total Adjustments 168,173,543
23 Personnel expenses
Particulars Amount
Amortization of Prepaid Employee Benefit (20,383,190)
Increment in expenses due to Actuarial Valuation 5,027,913
Total Adjustments (15,355,277)
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24 Other operating expenses

Derecognition of deferred carpet expenses(assets) in the first year of adoption requires derecognition of
amortized figure of such expenses in the later years as well.

25 Deferred Tax

Revised deferred tax has been calculated based on remeasured assets and liabilities of the bank. Calculation
detail of the same has been provided under Schedule 4.15.Accordingly, the movement of the deferred tax
liability has been charged to Profit/(Loss) account.

26 Other Comprehensive Income

Actuarial Gain/(Loss) and Fair Value of Equity instruments recognised at fair value through OCI are recognized
as OCI Reserves. Accordingly, the movement in such reserves are provided for in “Other Comprehensive
Income”. The details of which are provided in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Effect of NFRSs adoption for statement of cash flows

For the year ended 31.03.2074 (the latest

Particulars Explan period presented under previous GAAP)

atory Previous Effect of Amount
Note GAAP Transition as per NFRSs

to NFRSs

Net cash flows from operating activities 27 (922,388,002) | (4,025,270,511) | (4,947,658,513)
Net cash flows from investing activities 28 1,370,751,690 (100,100,301) | 1,270,651,389
Net cash flows from financing activities 592,037,910 - 592,037,910
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalent 1,040,401,597 |(4,125,370,812) | (3,084,969,214)
Cash and cash equivalent at the beginning of the period 29 7,874,984,059 - 7,209,691,163
Cash and cash equivalent at the end of the period 8,915,385,656 -| 4,734,344,144*

*The Amount of Closing cash and cash equivalent includes the foreign exchange difference of Rs 609,622,195 i.e. the
amount of foreign exchange income for the year.

Explanatory Note:

27 Operating Activities

Details of the changes in the operating cash flow based on previous GAAP and based on NFRS are disclosed

below:
Particulars Amount
Foreign Placement- Transferred to CCE (1,809,430,104)
Change in Due from NRB (463,449,607)
Money at call and Short Notice-Transferred to CCE (1,482,036,329)
Foreign Exchange (609,622,195)
Cheque in transit 144,861
Local Placement-Transferred to CCE 208,161,449
Foreign Bond Income Adjustment 107,724,885
Purchase of Intangible Asset 23,236,529
Total (4,025,270,511)

Note: CCE=Cash and Cash Equivalent
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28 Investing Activities

Details of the changes in the cash flow from investing activities based on previous GAAP and based on NFRS
are disclosed below:

Particulars Amount
Purchase of Intangible Assets (23,236,529)
T-Bill (68,228,126)
Foreign Bond (41,039,000)
Foreign Placement -with original maturity of more than 90 days 32,403,354
Total (100,100,301)

Note: Previously, cash flow from purchase and sale of T-Bill, Foreign Bond and other securities had been shown on
net basis. However, based on NFRS, the actual cash flow from the purchase and sale of the investment securities
has been shown. Thus, the difference stated above arises.

29 Cash and Cash Equivalent

Total amount of cash-in-hand, balances with other bank and financial institutions, money at call and short notice,
and highly liquid financial assets with original maturities of three months or less from the acquisition date that
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in their fair value, and are used by the Bank in the management
of its short term commitments are considered to be Cash and Cash equivalent. Detail break up of which for

the Bank are:

Particulars

Asar 2073

Asar 2074

Cash in Hand

Money at call and short notice

Balance with Banks / Financial Insitutions

Cheque in transit

Local Placement with original maturity of 90 days
Foreign Placement with original maturity of 90 days

1,498,347,320
1,482,036,329
698,934,429
16,390,543
3,513,982,542

1,5658,322,040
1,215,911,701
144,861
224,839,335
1,735,126,207

Total

7,209,691,163

4,734,344,144
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COMPARISON UNAUDITED AND AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of FY 2074/75

Rs. '000'
Statement of Financial Position As per As per Variance
unaudited Audited )
Financial Financial Reasons for Variance
Assets Statement | Statement Inamount | In%

Cash and cash equivalent 4,141,268 4,741,359 600,091 14% | Reclass of Financial Assets with original maturity within

Due from NRB and placements with BFls 10,148,824 | 10,148,785 (40) 0% | 90 days into cash and cash equivalent

Loan and advances 87,407,345 | 86,160,213 | (1,247,132) -1% | Recognition of Loan Loss Provision as Impairment as
mandated by the Carve-out provided by ICAN.

Investments Securities 12,253,434 | 11,654,172 (599,262) -5% | Reclass of Financial Assets with original maturity within
90 days into cash and cash equivalent.

Investment in subsidiaris and associates 195,786 195,786 - -

Goodwill and intangible assets 85,853 85,853 - -

Other assets 8,907,830 3,476,135 | (5,431,695) | -61% | Reclass of Provision against Other Assets

Total Assets 123,140,339 | 116,462,301 - -

Capital and Liabilities

Paid up Capital 8,114,529 8,114,529 - -

Reserves and surplus 7,329,724 6,024,368 | (1,305,357) -18% | Adjustment in Income Statement under various heads.

Deposits 99,743,045 | 98,988,791 | (754,254) -1% | Reclass of Deposit from BFIS

Borrowings - - - -

Bond and Debenture 600,000 623,358 23,358 4% | Bond and Debenture recorded at amortized cost.

Other liabilities and provisions 7,353,040 2,711,256 | (4,641,785) | -63% | Reclass of Provision against Other Assets and adjustment
of changes in Actuarial Valuation.

Total Capital and Liabilities 123,140,339 | 116,462,301 - -

Statement of Profit or Loss

st ncame 986232 | OT2AET | (121361) | -1% | Sk naman e e

Interest expense (5,403,047) | (5,403,047) - -

Net interest income 4,443,185 4,321,824 - -

Fee and commission income 772,038 772,038 - -

Fee and commission expense (86,584) (64,237) 22,347 -26% | Reclassification of expenses into non operating expenses

Net fee and commission income 685,454 5,029,625 - -

Other operating income 1,053,847 823,753 | (230,094) -22% | Reclassification of Income into other heads

Total operating income 6,182,486 5,853,378 - -

Impairment charge/(reversal) for loans and other losses (44,385) (679,917) | (635,533) |1432% | Recognition of Loan loss Provision as Impairment and
Increment in Provision for other assets

Net operating income 6,138,101 5,173,461 - -

Personnel expenses (1,580,168) 1,322,248 | 2,902,417 | -184% | Adjustment of Actuarial Valuation and Staff Bonus

Other operating expenses (840,455) (862,547) (22,092) 3% | Reclassification of expenses

Operating profit 3,717,478 2,988,666 - -

Non operating income/expense (55,461) 223,486 278,947 | -503% | Reclassification of Income

Profit before tax 3,662,017 2,765,179 | (896,838) -24% | Due to post audit adjustments

Income tax (1,047,396) (889,569) 157,827 -15% | Due to post audit adjustments

Profit /(loss) for the period 2,614,621 1,875,610 - -

Other comprehensive income 47,482 20,558 (26,924) | -57% | Adjustment of Deferred Tax

Total comprehensive income 2,662,104 1,896,168 - -

Distributable Profit

Net profit/(loss) as per profit or loss 2,614,621 1,875,610 | (739,011) -28% | Due to post audit adjustments

Less: Appropriation to Reserves - (499,968) | (499,968) - | Appropriation to Reserves now done

Add/Less: Regulatory adjustment as per NRB Directive (140,032) (723,598) | (583,566) - | Changes in amount of regulatory adjustments

Profit/(loss) after regulatory adjustments 2,474,589 652,045 - -
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HIMALAYAN BANK LIMITED, Corporate Office

Kamaladi, P.0O. Box: 20590, Kathmandu, Nepal, Tel: 977-1-4227749,

Fax: 977-1-4222800, E-mail: himal@himalayanbank.com
Website: www.himalayanbank.com, SWIFT: HIMANPKA

Biratnagar Branch
Shanihat Mainroad, Biratnagar, Morang
Tel: 021-524653, 534944

Dharan Branch
Putali Line, Sunsari
Tel: 025-528966, 528967

Itahari Branch
Dharan Road, Itahari, Sunsari
Tel: 025-587041, 587042

Damak Branch
Highway, Damak, Jhapa
Tel: 023-585291

Birtamod Branch
Sanischarya Road, Birtamod, Jhapa
Tel: 023-545611

Hile Branch
Bhojpur Road, Hile, Dhankuta
Tel: 026-540628, 540629

Madi Branch
Okharbote-4, Sankhuwasabha
Tel: 01-6201751

Birgunj Branch
Mahabir Road, Birgunj, Parsa
Tel: 051-524678, 527504

Bardibas Branch
Mohotari, Nepal
Tel: 044-550161, 550162

Parsauni Branch
Parsauni-5, Bara
Tel.: 053-620000

Baragadi Branch
Khowpawa-3, Bara
Tel: 01-6201363

Subarna Branch
Kabahigoth-6, Bara
Tel: 01-6201366

Thamel Branch:

Karmachari Sanchaya Kosh Building
Thamel, Kathmandu

Tel: 4227745, 4227756

Maharajgunj Branch
Maharajgunj, Kathmandu
Tel: 01-4425183, 4424292

New Road Branch
Bishal Bazar Complex, Kathmandu
Tel: 01-4243107, 4224787

Bhaktapur Branch
Sukuldhoka, Bhaktapur
Tel: 01-6617493, 6616092

Patan Branch
Pulchowk, Lalitpur
Tel: 01-5010584, 5010593

Tandi Branch
Sauraha Chowk, Tandi, Chitwan
Tel: 056-560750

Bharatpur Branch
Pulchowk, Chitwan
Tel: 056-571474, 572225

Hetauda Branch
Main Road, Hetauda, Makawanpur
Tel: 057-525877,522899

Banepa Branch
Tindobato, Banepa, Kavrepalanchowk
Tel: 011-664734

Teku Branch
Kathmandu Business Park, Kathmandu
Tel: 01-4104572, 4104687

Chabahil Branch
Chuchepati, Chabahil, Kathmandu
Tel: 01-5210045

Swoyambhu Branch
APF Welfare Plaza, Swoyambhu, Ktm.
Tel: 01-4033798, 4285461

Trishuli Branch
Battar, Trishuli, Nuwakot
Tel: 010-561696

New Baneshwor Branch
New Baneshwor Chowk, Kathmandu
Tel: 01-4785583,4784859

Parsa Branch
Naya Road, Parsa, Chitwan
Tel.: 056-583628

Shorakhutte Branch
Shorakhutte Chowk, Kathmandu
Tel: 01-4389035

Dillibazar Branch
Siddhibhawan, Charkhaladda, Ktm.
Tel: 01-4431658

Kalanki Branch
Kalanki Chowk, Kathmandu
Tel: 01-5234762, 5235038

Satdobato Branch
Satdobato Chowk, Lalitpur
Tel: 01-5151945,

Bahrabise Branch
Barhabise Bazar, Sindhupalchowk
Tel: 011-489290

Battisputali Branch
Battisputali, Kathmandu
Tel: 01-4484990

Dhading Branch
Dhadingbesi, Dhading
Tel: 010-521110

Kaushaltar Branch
Gatthaghar, Bhaktapur
Tel: 01-6639564

Betrawati Branch
Laharepauwa, Betrawati, Rasuwa
Tel: 010-681343, 412001

Samakhushi Branch
Gangabu, Samakhushi, Kathmandu
Tel: 01-4354663

Gaurishanker Branch
Gurumphi-6, Dolakha
Tel: 01-6201748

Myagang Branch
Deurali-3, Nuwakot
Tel: 01-6201463

Tarkeshwor Branch
Dansingh-1, Nuwakot
Tel: 01-6201365

Pokhara Branch
New Road, Pokhara, Kaski
Tel: 061-538907, 540230

Baglung Branch
Jeep Park, Baglung
Tel: 068-522690

Gorkha Branch
Bus Park, Gorkha
Tel: 064-421520

Kawasoti Branch
Shabhapati Chowk-5, Nawalparasi
Tel: 078-541040

Ram Bazar Branch
Amarsingh Chowk, Pokhara, Kaski
Tel: 061-430301

Bhairahawa Branch
PrahariTole, Siddharthanagar, Rupandehi
Tel: 071-526945, 524395

Butwal Branch
Traffic Chowk, Butwal, Rupandehi
Tel: 071-551016, 551017

Palpa Branch
Silkhan Tole, Tansen, Palpa
Tel: 075-522641, 520095

Ghorahi Branch
New Road, Ghorahi, Dang
Tel: 082-562901

Nepalgunj Branch
Dhamboji, Nepalgunj, Banke
Tel: 081-411290

Lamahi Branch
Lamahi Bus Park, Dang
Tel: 082-540842, 540843

Raptisonari Branch
Samshergunj-8, Banke
Tel: 081-400089, 400091

Province 6

Salyan Branch
Srinagar, Salyan
Tel: 088-400012

Kumakha Branch
Marmaparikada, Ragechaur-8, Salyan
Tel: 01-6201752

Province 7

Dhangadi Branch
Ratopool, Dhangadi, Kailali
Tel: 091-520202

Lamki Branch
Tikapur road, Kailali
Tel: 091-540513

Chhededaha Branch
Dogadi Bazaar-5, Bajura
Tel: 01-6201754

Card Centre

Kamaladi, Kathmandu

Tel: 01-4227749

Toll Free No.: 16-600-112-000

Global FI & Remittance Centre

Kamaladi, Kathmandu

Tel: 01-4227749, 4250354
Toll Free No.: 16-600-111-000

Outside Country

Himalayan Bank Limited- Kuala Lumpur
Representative Office

2nd Floor, Wisma Maran, 28 Medan Pasar,

50050 Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia
Tel: +603 2022 3664
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CSR Activities

Donation to PM Relief Fund Clothes and Food For
onation o etetrun Helping Hand Children
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